


The Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2015 together with Auditors' Report thereon.

BUSINESS PLRFORMANCE

2015 was the year which witnessed Company wiping offits accurnulated losses in its investment linked funds and stand
ready for paying back the capital contribution made by shareholders' fund in past years to develop the Company where it
stands currently. It was also the year when the Company has successfully launched its internally developed fully integrated
business systems aiming for aperational excellence. This phenomenal progress was the result of tremendous hard work put
on byall the employees to whom Company remains obliged and has always felt proud for having such a great and enthusiastic

team on board.

Total gross premium postedin 201 Samounted to Rs. 9.15 bl which is 37% above the budgeted target. The total gross
premium was higher by Rs. 3.9 blagainst last yearthus regjstering a growth of 75%. The new business regular gross premium
rase to Rs. 1.8 bl which is 39% up as compared to last year. In 2015, due to decent and above the benchmark performance
trend of its funds, the Company was able to attract significant amount of Single premium amounting to Rs. 4.3 bl which
is 2.5 times of the last year's amount. The renewal business was recorded at Rs. 2.6 bl producing overall persistency of
82.81% as compared to last year's persistency of 79.80%.The major contributor of the Company's top line is again the
Bancassurance business. It is remarkable to note that apart from Company's captive business from MCB Bank, business
from Faysal Bank is growing much better than it was expected due to excellent front line and after sales customer services.
The Company is steadily growing its business from its own agency distribution with the work on establishing additional
branch at Multan is under progress. The management is evidencing stability in agency distribution with each passing day
and is confident that in next couple of years this channel will be contributing in the Company’s bottom line as well

The group life business performance has improved significantly and has producedgross premium amounting Rs. 357
million aginst last year's business of Rs. 294 million registering the growth rate of 21%.

The Company's total investment income was Rs. 1.15 bl which earned an average return of 10,27% onits total investment
against last year's rate of return of 16.71%. During the year KSE 100 index posted a negative return of 1.4% whereas SBP
policy discount rate dropped from 9.5% to 6.5%. In the given scenario, the Company's return on investment remained more
than satisfactory.

The Company paid total death and disability claims of Rs. 347 ml during the year whereas Rs. 1.7 bl was paid against
surrenders and maturity. The total claims payment of Rs. 2.1 bl represents 15% of the total policyholders' fund/reserve held
by the Company.

There has been no change in the Company's reinsurance treaty basic terms for both group and individual life business as
compared to last year except for the profit commission arrangement which will start triggering from the next year. The
Company's reinsurance outflow was Rs. 313ml against the reinsurance inflow of Rs. 258ml

The Company's total acquisition cost to individual life premium was 17.796 while the same for group life premium was
8.8%.

After reserving for policyholders' liability, the Company was able to produce underwriting surplus (before management
expenditure) of Rs. 770million against last year's amount of Rs. 442million. The underwriting margin thus stood at
8.42%to GWP which is more or Jess same as for last year.

The Company's management expenditure for the year was Rs. 489 million against last year's expenditure of Rs. 388million,
registering an increase of 26%. Rising trend is due to Company's growing phase and investment in human resource,
information technology, office infrastructure and increase in marketing activities in response to tough competitive environment,
The ratio of management expenditure to gross premium has reduced from 7.44% to 5.34% due to phenomenal growth
in premium.
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The combined surplus of all statutory funds was Rs. 305 million whereas profit after tax in shareholders' fund was
Rs. 1 million.

During the first half of the year the Company made a small capital contribution from Shareholders’ fand to Statutory fund
amounting to Rs. 13.8 ml only for solvency purpose. However, the full year's result, particularly the second half of the year,
was very encouraging which has enabled the Company's Non-unitized Investment linked and Unit linked Statutory funds
to recoup its entire losses and is now posting apositive retained earnings. There was therefore no need for further capital
contribution and in fact the Company is now aiming to pay the contribution back,in early 2016 to shareholders' fund to the

tune of Ra. 250 rnl after still retaining the required solvency margin of approx Rs. 226 ml in capital contribution accouat
of above two statutory funds.

The Company's size of policyholders’ funds has been increased to Rs. 14.4 bl from Rs. 8.26 bl.

The Company's ratio of current assets to carrent liabilities was 2.22 against last year's ratio of 1.98 and its adequacy of
solvency in shareholders’ funds is at a comfortable level of 1.49 against last year's level of 1.64.

The Company has maintained its substantial leve] of exposure in risk free investment where 85% of the Company's
investments are in government securities.

The Company's staff strength was increased from 183 to 201.

As per profit and loss account {shareholders’ fund), the eamning per share comes to Re. 0.01 per share. The EPS will start
improvingfrom 2016 when shareholders’ equity will start rising after capital payback from statutory funds resulting into
higher investment income. Moreover, Company is targeting to complete capital pay back by 2017 and start appropriating
surplus to shareholders fund from 2018 resulting in significant increasing in EPS then onwards.

INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITILS

The Company had outsourced its Internal Audit Function to M/s. AF. Ferguson & Co, Chartered Accountants. During
the year Internal Audit Report of Marketing function was presented to the Board's Audit Committee. The said Internal
Audit report had few observations which were taken up by the management, other than those observations there were no
major findings highlighted by M/s. A F. Ferguson & Co,, which could impair Company's ability to achieve its strategic
objectives.

In addition to outsourced internal audit function the Company has an established in-house internal audit fanction. In this
regard certain categories of financial transactions were reviewed by the in house internal audit function on regular basis. The
function also coordinates with the outsourced internal auditors in their assignments.

HUMAN RESOURCE

The Company pays high importance to human resource function and believes in strong processes and policies to support
company's recruitment, development and performance management systems. The management is satisfied with the quality
and quantity of work undertaken by the Human Resource department during the year. The Company's employee turnover
rate was at comfortable level of 7%. As far as continuous professional development of staff and financial advisors' of agency
distribution is concerned, they have got Certifications in various disciplines, according to their fanctional responsibilities,
from 'Adamijee Life Academy'. The Company spent Rs, 7.5 ml towards training & development of staff.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

During the year four meetings each of Board of Directors and Board's Audit Committee were held. Three meetings of
Board's Investment Committee and one meeting of Board's HR Committee were also held during the year.

>> DIRECTORS




Market Overview

- The insurance penetration and density remained very modest as compared to other jurisdictions while
the insurance sector remained underdeveloped relative to its potential.

- Lowpenetration of less than .5% of GDP provides a large untapped market potential

- Govt owned State life Insurance Co. has the largest Market share of nearly 70%

- Jubilee Life and EFU Life are the major competitors of Adamjee Life in Private sector insurers with a
combined market share of 81% out of Rs 70 bn total Gross Premium.

- Jubilee Life has posted approximately Rs 7.5 billion premium with Rs 5.5 billion from group owned bank
HBL, whereas MCB has produced Rs. 1.4 billion

- Total Industry Growth of 25% in 2015 Avg, industry growth of 30% in the last five years

- New Entrants like IGI Life and TPL Life will further require established players to be more agile and
flexible in strategic planning

EXPANSTION IN DISTRIBUTION

Bancassurance Distribution

Market overview above presents an attractive picture for growth potential. Prime example is HBL jubilee partnership yielding
enviable results, Adamijee is constantly pushing our group owned Bank to enhance the scope of distribution and expand to
enable sales from full branch network New distribution structures approved by SECP allow insurance companies to test
new models with partner banks presenting an opportunity to scale the business. Adamjee Life will build on and expand
scope of existing partnerships and identify additional opportunities for distribution. The primary focus of Banks is still on
standard unit linked product which leaves room for additional product categories like credit life, health and small ticket
products. Capitalizing on expertise of successful bank distribution partnerships, Adamjee is offering distribution consultancy
to potential banks for product, incentives, distribution and marketing in pursuit of possible partnerships.

Agency Distribution

Increasing awareness for Insurance and expanding target market in coming years provides a better scope of agency distribution
as compared to a decade ago. Technological enablement has curtailed operational risks associated with insurance distribution
and is enabling more individuals to join insurance sales as a profession. At agency we have launched 4 setups with attractive
business and production standards and have requested board to approve remaining expansion plan to cover key geographic
locations. Once base model is laid down, it will allow us to engage low cost peripheral setups linked with existing branches
for business processing and controls. Lead management program has been developed to assist the advisor in prospecting
and empower the supervisors to administer sales effectively, ultimately aspiring to increase productivity.

Group Life and Alternative Distribution

Group Life portfolio has been expanding year on year basis with prime goal of volume and profitability. Recent results and
response from market encourages Adamjee to invest further in manpower and enhancement in product offering,
Our focus of alternative distribution has been to engage partners with high customer reach and affinity, trust with the
distribution partner and transaction capability. Primary target is telecom and branchless banking partners due to their high
reach.Uptake in initial years has been slow however with 88% of the population being unbanked, the future is branchless
and digital distribution platforms, one example is highly successful project with Easy paisa producing over Rs 40 ml business.
We plan to continue to focus on enablement of alternate delivery channels as customer lifestyle and buying behavior is
constantly evolving,

Family Takaful Window Operations

Launch of Family Takaful window will allow Adamjee Life to enter new market where financial decisions are made based
on religious beliefs. Results in countries similar to Pakistani demographics have seen tremendous growth in Takaful business,
however it remains to be seen the potential uptake of Takaful products against conventional products in local market OFf
the 2 local Takaful companies, Pak Qatar has done well whereas Dawood Takaful has been struggling due to distribution
and management challenges. Adamjee has appointed Mufti ZubairUsmant as Shariah Advisor and plans to promote and
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invest in window operations in coming years to critically evaluate response from market.

Product & Marketing

As new regulations are standardizing product revenue structure, Industry is becoming competitive in product enhancement
with innovative product structures, value added benefits and improved packaging of products. Many examples are available
regionally and internationally where product structures are developed for specialized segments with targeted benefits.
Product enhancement initiative is also to support partnering with new distribution partners who are offering standardized
products.

In 2015 competitors spent approximately Rs 890 million in advertising, which poses challenge for Adamjee to maintain and
promote brand identity. Focus in coming years will inchide branding and promotion of brand through engagement of
existing and prospective customers. Digital and social media platforms are enabling companies to be more accessible and
visible to target audience.

Customer Service & Experience

Alongside rapid expansion experienced in past years, customer service, response time and experience rermain at utmost
priority. Focus placed on customer service will be much higher in coming years as customer satisfaction results in continuity
of client relationship resulting in income through renewals. As products of all insurance companies are more or less similar,
servicing experience can form part of differentiating factor.

Organizational Development
In order to cope with fast paced expansion and increasing human capital of organization, Adamjee requires continuing with
otganizational development plan which includes:

- Right structure and staffing of divisions

- Training, development, empowerment and retention of staff

- Management development and leadership development program

- Recruitment, screening and selection process

- Career enhancement and progression plan for key staff members

- Sustaining organization culture of Care, openness and high integrity
- Maintain and expand infrastructure to host and enable staff

Buziness Technology

Business technology has proven to be a differentiating factor for the services industry in terms of lient communication and
transaction experience. In house development of CoreApp has enabled the organization to think beyond bare minimum
requirement to creating a wow experience for all stakeholders. Utilization of technology is providing a higher accuracy and
efficiency by reducing workload and turn around time through automation. Adamjee is geared and will be capitalizing on
upcoming innovative and digjtal distribution opportunities.
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PATTERN OF SHHAREHHOLDING

Pattern of Shareholding as at December 31,2015
Shareholdin
Number of & Share Held
Shareholders : From To

7 1 250 1,750

1 24,060,000 24,060,000 24,059,105

1 69,489,000 69,489,000 69,488,545

9 93,549,400

Additional Information as at December 31,2015
. Number of Percentage

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held of Total
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties: 2 93,547,650 99.998%
M/s. Adamjee Insurance Company Limited 69,488,545 74280%
M/s.TVM Intersurer B.V. 24,059,105 25.718%
Directors: 7 1,750 0.002%
Mr. Muhammad Umer Mansha 250 0.000%
Mr. Muhammad Raza Mansha 250 0.000%
Mr. S.M. Jawed 250 0.000%
Mr. Muhammad Ali Zeb 250 0.000%
Mr. Francois Potgieter 250 0.000%
Mr. Frans Georg Prinsloo 250 0.000%
Mr. Fredrik Coenrard De Beer 250 |° 0000%
Total 93,549,400 100.000%
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The Basic eaming per share for the year ended on December 31, 2015 was Rs. 0.01.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit for the period 871,452

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 93,549,400

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 001
ik Coenrard De Beer

Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 15, 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
We have audited the annexed financial statements comprising of

{i) balance sheet;

(ii) profit and loss account;

(iiiy  statement of changes in equity;
(iv)  cash flow statement;

v} revenue account;

(vi) statement of premiums;

(vii)  statement of claims;

(viii)  statement of expenses; and

(ix)  statement of investrent income

of Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited (“the Company’’) as at 31 December 2015
together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors to establish and maintain a system of
internal control, and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with the
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 2000) and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1934), Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as, evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion:

a)  proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b) the financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and accurately
reflect the books and records of the Company and are further in accordance with
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d)

Date: 15 February 2016

KPMG Taseer Hadl & Co.

accounting policies consistently applied except for the change disclosed in note 3.4 with
which we concur;

the financial statements together with the notes thereon present fairly, in all material
respects, the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015, and of the profit, its
cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended in accordance with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required to be
disclosed by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

the apportionment of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses between two or more funds
has been performed in accordance with the advice of the appointed actuary; and

7akat deductible at source under the 7akat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980),
was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under
Section 7 of that Ordinance.

\epeo Now war k

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi Amyn Pirani



Adamjee Life Assorance Company Limited

Balance Sheet
Ar at 31 December 2015

Share eaplial and vezerves

Authorised share capitat

150,000,000 (2014; § 00,000,000} oedlnary
shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up shar capital

979,549,400 shares (2014: 93,549,400 shares)
ondénary shares of R, 10 each

Accumylated surplos

Less; Capltal coatrioasion by
sharehokders” fund

Nel sharaholders’ equity

Balancy sf sistutory fund (includiog pelicy
Solders’ Mabilities of Ra. 13836 billen}
(2014: Ra. 7.986 billiou)

Dealerred Yabllky:

- Stalf retirement benefits
« Deferrad taxation

Craditors aud accruabs

Outstanding claims

[ P
¥

L]
Amounts due to reinguren
Amounds due 1o sgents
Actrued sxpenses

Othar creditors ind accrusls

Toter-fund payable
Total Habiliiies

CONTINGENCIES ARD COMM ITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1]

"

H

12

Sharebolders’ Statwiery Fundy Apgregate
Fund Convestional  Accidest snd How-unilised Unir Linked 015 014
Bwilness Heakh tavesiment Link Businesy
Business Businers
{Rupees)
Ldenoee, : : : o . lgonseenon, 1000200000,
935,494,000 - - - - 935,494,000 935,494 000
TiLaviTe? | - - - - Tiosaee [ 1022017
§55.811 - - - - 655,611,578 (o |, 811,570
(584,512,301} - - - - (SEA 519500  ($71,591.25%)
350,974,199 - - - - 350,974,199 363,902,147
- 164,146,044 116676 1,313,119,189 11,968,294,714 14,444, TIT 521 8.156,341,827
9,143,183 - - - - 4,143,183 6,298,754
Ti5098 - - - - 75 -

- B,0%5,099 - 13,436,135 116,049,700 198,180,934 111,498,620
- 1,350,698 3,300 S1,986,671 151,602,516 135,948,645 142,167,143
- 33,000,150 - - - 33,500,154 19,211,912
- [RTI N 15456 7,330,608 114,933,410 230,641,637 204,764 458
5,319,363 - - - - £,339.%683 1961832
55,031,616 79,713 - 138,599 5,750,143 41,192,001 35,448,637
- 1,843,902 9,145 - TE95LITT ngg,qu 43,619,100
$0ATLSE 13,111,135 143401 73,584,013 4,208,146 53404 $61.685,T17
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Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited

Balance Sheel
As at J1 December 2013

Cash nad bank depesiis
Cash and others
Current and othet accounts

Deposits maturing withis 12 moalhs

Uniecured baans to empleyees

Lastt secared agalazt Lifs lmsurance Pollclas
Tnvesimenls

Gaovernment sccilritics

thedqu':ym'lia-duisol'mml!w

Ieferred inzation
Current apsets - sthers
Promium due but wipaid
Actrucd incoms on Kvestments
Amauns dus from reatsres
Taxation - payment Yoss provision
Advsmcos sod deposits
Prepaymonis

Other eeorivables

Dividend recchable

|nere lund receivabie

Fized msets
Tangible

Famitore and fixiures, olfice equiprct,
compraers and ohickes

Capiual work in progress
Intangibles
Compter Sofllwars

TOTAL ASSETS

The anncxed notes | la 34 ru-m-nhmmlpmonhmﬁnmhlau

s
Uy oy

b Simiutory Funds _Aggregate
Note Fund Comvamtlonnl  Accldeni and Non-umlthed Unbt Linked 045 2004
Buslmaus Henkth Invesimant Link BusineH
Buslness Business
{Rupwss)
1
45472 - - - - rerey| 12608
718443 74,004,619 168,263 0430486 BALALA 979,749,700 STL385014
- - - | 36l -
21,765,137 74,004,619 168,163 100,430,486 1,142,424,666 19,795,181 71,660,622
3211.098 32098 1,893,113
i - - - 1,501,895 1,044,742 10,346,647 3,522,901
isi b 1e4398816 151,516,025 AU 1.8Z7306,75% 9,5¢4,331,736 TiAs1a51 4 || 673107917
156 - - 25,152,166 119,194,467
15001 TA1590) - 243 |
A1 1S 176,406,719 [TE 1} 2.185,9%1,011 13,158,540.674 DANLLT4,158 8009714363
14 . - - - . - . L1767
1” - 4I75.183 - - _] 24,275,153 23,439,400
4,802,029 1,449,315 . 44,548,263 131,370,741 292170348 300,54
- . - 5,T15.981 M 268 4TT A0 H5A58 14650.TH4
21523045 - B - - 12513348 7.470,343
Y TAAZLAS4 99433 - 54,000,000 - 65,113,457 7809599
n: 19,058,191 - - - 4648.TTH 13, 744068 31,026,494
1473539 - - - - IATISM LN
19,085 - - - 448,713 81T 41039
8,339,859 - - 70,885,565 - || __ 43,629,100
$2,638,722 6415331 - 170,579,509 271, 7TL 768 $31,706,630 451,581,695
i»
54,335,031 - - - - 54,305.532 50,188,283
16,330,160 - - - - 16,330,161 5491334
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Adamijee Life Assurance Company Limited

Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Investment income not attributable to statutory funds
Income from Trading Investments

Unrealised appreciation in valug of quoted cquity securitics

. Gain on disposal of trading investments

Income from Non-Trading Investments

Return on government securities
Retum on bank deposits
Dividend income

Gain on disposal of non-trading investments

. Provision for impairment in value of investments

Listed equity securities and units of mutua! fund

Net investment income

Other revenues

(Loss)/ gain on disposal of fixed assets
Other income

Tota) investment income and other revenues

Expenses not attributable to statutory funds

Profit before appropriation of surplus to shareholders' fund

Surplus appropriated to shareholders’ fund

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The annexed notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SR

Uhpraon

Chairman frector

Note 2015 2014
(Rupees)
15.13 854,433 208,388
854,433 208,388
19,187,766 26,658,774
1,210,854 1,453,245
2,809,341 2414885 |
23,207,961 30,526,904_
24,062,394 30,735,292
4,108,464 3,119,208
15.12 (626,548) -
27,544,310 33,854,500
193 (76,099) 3,018,852
173,056 147,246
96,957 3.166,138
27,641,267 37,020,638
20 (23,481,571) {18,335,415)
4,159,696 18,685,223
4,159,696 18,685,223
22 (3,288,244} (3.679,357)
871,452 15,005,866
(Rupees})
23 0.01 .16
Director Eﬁief Executive Officer




Adamiee Life Assurance Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Share Caplial Net Accumulated Surplus Agpregate
Caplial Accumulated  Net accumulated
contribution to surplus deflclt
statutory lunds
(Rugpees)
Balsnce as at 1 Janusry 2014 935,494,000 {571,685,570} 55,214,451 (516.471,119) 419,022,881
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 - . 15,005,866 15,005,866 15,005,866
Transactions with the owners directly recorded In equity
Capital contribution to statutory funds - note 8 B (70,126,000) - (TO.'I 26,000) (70,126,000)
_ Balanceasatl | December 2014 935,494,000 (641,811,570) 70,220,317 (571,591,253} 363,902,747
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 - - 871,452 871,452 §71,452
* Transactions with the owners directly recorded to equity
Capital contribution to statutory funds - note & - (13,800,000) - (13,800,000) {13,800,000)
Balance a5 at 31 December 2015 935:4941000 sﬁsslﬁl IISTG! 1110911169 ssuéwﬁq _M
“The annexed notes 1 to 34 fomm an integral part of these financial statements.
Ui 1k A~ @M&a/
Chalrman Difector f Director ﬁhler Executive Officer



Adamjec Life Assurance Company Limited

Cash Flow Statement
For the yeor ended 31 December 2015
Shareholders’ Statutory Fumdx - _Aggregsle
Note Fund Conventional  Accldeat Nom-unitised Usit Linked 2015 04
Businesy and Heallh Investment Link Busines
Bustness DBusiness
(Rupess)
COperating cash flows
a) Underwrillng nctivitles )
Premivmd recetved - 369,176,323 - £24,009,.337 2.361450,192 9,245,635,852 5.774,386,249
Prymems 1o Reinsurer - (1.599.214) - QA1555N (54,840,694) (76,155.875) {11.696,019)
Clairs paid - (270,835,118) - (95,022,455 (1.587,158,797) (1.952,216,362) (1.381,557.964)
Commbssions paid -~ 11 (33,993,133 - {41,323, {1,398,172,583 903,609,989
Net cash flow from underwriting
activities - 48,258 856 - 383,747,446 §311,178,118 5,743,284,420 2,908,5222T1
b) Other opersilng activities )
ncome tax paid (16,046,133} - - - - 16,046,133} (1.771.492)
Geners] management eXpenscs
paid (24 A00,259) (32,766,401) 158 (82,675,854} (433,941,620) {573,784,376) (441.996.927)
Other openating payments - 56,779.833) {30,633} (59,137,664) - (115.495,130) (410,508,022}
Other operating reccipis 34,614,830 f 172,294 - £0,710,956 115,495,130 410,508,022
Net cash flow from other '
oporating wetivities 1,542 (89,046,134) 92418 (541,313,518 (353,131,664) (589,830,509} (444 768,419)
Total cash flow from all
operatlag sctiviites GANSID  @0T8TITE) 92414 241,933,928 4,958,046,454 5153453911 2463753858
Investment actlvities
Profit / return received rn,su,sﬂ 20,116,403 11,603 197,577,601 730,276,857 970,897,355 192,491,800
Torm deposit placement - - - - (100,000,000} {100,000,000) -
Investmenitd p\rmhmﬂ (213,319,143 (296,132,750} (86,146) (3,840,955,1 b)) (19,633 845,135) (11.984,338.401) (16,324.7 13,895)
Proceeds from dispazal of :
nvesiments 243,934,380 326,979,182 86,146 3,468,174.252 14,596,565,873 18,635,743,.833 13.954,135.537
Disbursemnent of policy loans - - - (8,500,939 (1,812217) (10,323,266} (3,564,275}
Settlement of policy Joans - - - 3,325,418 15,571 4,140,999 1,006,967
Dividend received 1808376 - - 346,857 31,441,179 35596512 4,089,534
Fincd capita! expenditure 39,943 485T) - - - - {(39,94348T) (30,783,395}
Procecds from disposa! of fixed asscls 1,907,103 - l - \ - L - 1,907,103 | L $R19.148
Totsl cash flow generated from
{nvesting activities 18,302,120 50,962,835 11,603 {180,031,928) {4.315.563.981} (4.486.319.351) (2.204.5 18,584)
Financiag activitles

W ey I B I N S

Total cash flaw from flnanciag actlvitie - - -
Net cash laflow 1 {outflow) from

sl nctivitles 12,470,608 10,175,457 104,022 61,902,000 147,432A72 667,134,559 259235274
Cash and cash cquivalents at
tegimning of the year 10,294,529 £3831,472 64,241 38,518 485 459,942,194 £72,660,612 313425348
Cash and cash equivalents at .
vad of the year 13.3 gugs,l 37 14,006,623 168,263 mglasoﬂsa 1341414,556 1239;95.18 | STZIEGGIGII
’ 2015 2014
Naote {Rupees}

Recancitintion to profit and Toss acconnt

Operating cash flown 5,153453,911 2.463,753.858

Depreciation cxpense 9Ll (20,545,022) (16,416,596}
Amortisation expense 9.1 {5,378.939 {7.293,345)
Bad debis 4509,17) -
{Loss) / gnin on disposal of fixed asscit i9.3 (76,099) 3.018.592
Opersting imvestment income 954,491,134 636261336
Gain on salc of mvesTnents 151,724,769 41,138,523
Capite] contributian from shareholders’ fund 8 13,800,000 70,126,000
Incremse / decroasc in asscls other than cash 149,679,150 34,690,087
Incroase in Hobilities other than running finence (6,482,406,192) {3,600.543,920)
Trevaluation gain on investients 61,034,515 405,573.031
Profit after taxstlon B'.I'IIA_lzl 1 SIOIJSII!GG
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Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited
Revenue Account
For the year ended 3 Decemnber 2015

Sistutory Funds A e
Conventlonsl Accident and Non-unltised Unit Linksd Wwis - 2014
Note Business Health Business Invesimeni Link Busluess
Buslness
(Rupers)
Income
Premiums less TeIRSUrances 150,494,707 - £03.951,250 £,153,244,891 $,837,690,348 4,916.433,3?2
Net investment income 20,192,538 11,603 231,912,616 917,583,347 1,169,710,104 I,NS,QSZIUBS
Totsl net income 170,687,245 11,603 735,873,866 9,100,828,238 10,007,400,952 6,025,385457
Claims and. expenditure
Claims net of reinsurance recoverics 99,652,652 l7 = | 91,320,456 1.587,319,436 1,778,392,544 1,243,399481
Management expenses 70,557,181 (1581[ ‘.'1.0'15;18‘.' i 1,906,911,132 | 2,064,471,712 1,456,112,567
* Talal claims snd expenditure 170,209,803 {158) 168,325,643 3,494,230,568 3,832,765,256 2,699,512,048
Exress of income over claims and
cxpenditure 471,442 12,361 567,548,123 £ 606,597,670 6,174,635,696 3325873409
Add: Policyholders’ Tiabilitics at
beginning of the year 101,211,544 - 1,613,530,65] 6,271,711,143 7.986,454,338 4,732,158,663
Less: Policyholers' liabilities al end )
of the year 7 104 7,986,454,338
104 443,761,642 5.421,998,764 £,569,443,779 3,254,795.675
(Deficit) f surplus (3.105.817) 12,257 113,786,581 144,598,906 305,191,917 71,577,734
Movemenl i pollcyllollkrs' Enbilitles 3,683,269 104 443,761,642 5,421.9'98,1'64 5,869,443,T7% 3,254.295,675
Capital contribuilon from
shareholders’ fund - - - 13,800,000 13,800,000 70,126,000
Balsuce of statutory fonds al
beginning of the year 163,669,502 104315 1,744,670,966 6,347,897,044 8,156,341,817 4,860.342,418
Balance of statutory funds st end )
of the year & 164,146,944 116,676 1.352.219,18% 11 194,714 14,444.777,513 _E&SML
Represented by:
Capital contributed by shareholders’ fund 3 178,123,436 1,511,464 126,131,115 149,244,545 655,611,570 641,811,570
Palicyholders® linbilities & 104,395,813 104 1.057,292,293 11,693,709.907 13,855,893,117 7,986,454333
Retnined eamings on other than :
participating business & (118,872,305) (1,94.8%1) 18,194,711 15,340,262 (66,732,164) (371.924,081)

Balance of statutory funds

The annexed notes 1 1o 34 form an integral part of these financial staloments.
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Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited
_ Statement of Premiums
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Statutory Funds A ate
Conventional Accldent Non-unitised Unit Linked 2015 2044
Business and Healih Investment Business
Business Link Business
{Rupecs)
Gross premiums
_ Repular premium individus! policies®

= first yeor - - 40,430,000 1,798,657,980 1,839,087,980 1,320,689,806

- second year tenewal - - 44,408,998 937,118,207 931,527,205 910,442,827

- subsequent years renewal 4,250,467 - 415,629,854 1,201,601,415 1,631,481,736 926,865,766
Single premium individus! policics® - - - 4,340,668,030 4,340,6568,030 1,761,990,280
Group policies without cash values 357,875,144 - - - 357,875,144 194,958,725
Total gross premiums 362,125,611 - 550,468,852 - 8,278,045,632 9,150,640,095 5,214,947,404
Less: reinsurance premiums ceded
On individual life first year business - - 333,438 45,194,342 45,532,180 33,586,442
On individual life second year business - - 372,080 20,035,815 20,407,895 21,091.716
On individual life subsequent renewal ] '

busincss 93,285 - 5,807,084 28,474,429 34,374,798 21,572,420
On single premium individual policies - - - 1,096,155 1,096,155 127,536
On group policies 111,537,619 - - - 211,537,619 161,535,858

211,630,904 - 6,517,602 94,800,741 312,949,247 238,514,032

Net premiums 150,494,707 - 503,951,250 8,183,244,831 8|831'369ﬂ£48 43976|43 33712

* individual policies are those underwritten on an individual basis

The annexed otes | 1o 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited
Statement of Claims
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Statutory Funds Agprepate
Canventinnal Accident Non-unitised Unit Linked Business W15 2014
Buzlnesa and Health  Invesiment
Business  Link Buglness
{Rupees)
Gross cluims
Claims under indjvidual policics
- by death - - 11,445,864 98,592,702 116,038,566 64,049,060
- by insurcd cvent other than death - - 2,451,831 5,287,289 7,739,110 5,000,000
= by maturity - - - 205,407,408 205,407,408 44,447,990
- by surrender 130,950 - 82,649,673 1,348,713,493 1,431,594,116 | [ 1.099,988.029
" Total gross individual policy claims 130,950 - 96,547,368 1,658,000,592 1,754,779,210  1.213,485,079
Claims under growp policics
- by death 204,514,364 - - - 204,524,364 187,280,987
= by insurcd event olher than death 26,470,573 - - - 26,470,573 11,388,294
- expericnce refund 51,124,529 - - - 51,124,529 882,877 |
Tatal gross group policy claims 182,119,466 - - - 282,119,466 199,552,158
Total gross claims 181,350,416 - 96,547,368 §,658,000,592 2,036,898.676  1,413,037,237
Less: Reinsurance recoveries
= on individual claims 71,596 - 5,226,912 70,681,450 76,179,964 32,049,594
= an group claims 182,426,168 - - - 182,426,168 137,588,162
182,697,764 - 5,216,912 70,681,456 158,606,132 169,637,756
Net claims 99|6§11652 - 2! ﬂzgﬁ;ﬁ Iﬂ zgﬂl-i;% 1.128,291&4 [ ‘243 ,299:48 1

The anncxed noics | to 34 form an integral part of thesc financial statcments,
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Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited

Statement of Expenses
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Nove

Acquisition costs

Remuncration ta insurance intermediarics
on individual poficies:

- Cominission on first year premiums

- Commission on sccond year premiums

- Commission on subscquent years renewal

- Cominission on single premiums

- Other benelfits to insurance intcrmediaries

Remuneralion le insurance intermediarics
on group policies:

- Commission

= Other benefils to insurance intermediaries

Branch overheads 24

Other acquisition costs:

- Policy stamps
- Medical Examination Fee

Administrative expenses

Salarics, allowances and other benefits
Travelling expenses

Actuary's fee

Auditor’s remuneration

Legal and professional charges
Advertisement and publicity
Information icchnology expenses
Printing and stationery
Depreciation

Amortisation

Rent expense

insurance cxpenge

Car fuel and maintenance
Postage and courier

Utilities

Office maintenance
Entertainment

Bank and brokerage charpes
Clain investigation fecs
Technical suppon fee to associale (reversal)
Training and developiient

Fees and subscription

Marketing cost

Other (income) / expense - net
Exchange gain

Provision against doubtfat deby

Gross management exp

26.1

8.1
19.2.4

Total management expenses

ferwm

/e

Statutory Funds Aggresate
Conventlonal Accident Nor-unitised Unit Linked 2015 2014
Business and Health Investment Business
Business  Llnk Buslness
(Rupees)
- - 24,258,000 1,064,564 373 1,088,822.373 785,575,905
- - 2,030,750 47,385,182 49,415,932 45,618,869
106,262 - 10,077,842 36,040,036 40,224,140 23,171,165
- - - 84,275,218 84,275,238 33,897,828
- - 5,664,748 196,013,428 201,678,176 109,062, 74
106,262 - 42,031,340 1,422,278,257 1,464,415,859 997,325,941
30,594,790 - - - 30,594,790 30,535,804
1,232,586 - - - 1,232,586 564,665
31,82737% - - - 31,827,376 31,200,459
- - - 72,197,197 72,197,797 43,585,726
180,190 - 57,274 19,243,289 19,480,753 12,865,860
131,026 - 8,580 1,020,k15 1,159,721 383,734
311,216 - 65,854 10,263,404 20,640,474 13,449,594
32,244,854 - 42,097,194 £,514,739,458 1.589,081,506 [,085,561,730
22,125826 - 16,565,405 183,597,281 212,288,512 185,787,885
444,120 - 137,465 1,645,157 1,226,142 1,150,201
229,575 - 361,855 3,270,510 3,862,00) 5,141,001
79,628 - 170,014 1,182,593 1,432,235 1,260,579
785,011 - 1,335,652 11,623,499 13,743,562 6,958,550
0,691 - 24,616 1,219,624 1,250,931 5,672,470
1,380,363 - 1,986,684 18,520,887 21,887,934 14,972,253
299,973 - 341,542 5,802,461 6,443,976 3,756,388
1,039,265 - 1,368,240 13,752,886 16,160,391 14,029,239
339,375 - 474,894 4,326,208 5,140,977 6,732,490
1,668,207 - 2,445,304 23,318,943 217,432,454 25,517,894
50,174 - 86,866 784,956 930,996 - 837,146
1,157,503 - 813,959 8,457,209 10,428,67¢ 13,160,005
721,830 - 343,798 9,559,116 10,624,744 6,063,268
502,515 - 724,581 7,532,881 8,761,977 6,907,976
277,493 - 559,190 5,177,694 6,004,377 4,126,447
121,246 - 164,975 2,218,408 1,504,629 1,555,102
131,578 - 451,187 2,056,904 2,739,969 1,382,792
473,210 - 80,130 1,848,457 2,406,307 1,003,942
{31,961 - (55,483) (477.448) {570,392) 5,448,195
133,336 - 120,585 31,386,264 3,640,185 2,321,130
143,334 - 5,505,515 24,296,112 29,944,961 21,008,301
1,335,049 - 555,988 58,921,579 60,818,616 36,062,872
{119,5624) (758) 343,631 143,431 366,680 (175,11
- - - - - (130,172)
4,909,772 - - - 4,909,772 -
38,312,297 (758) 34,907,993 392,171,674 465,391,206 370,550,837

TllgSTI 151 {758) 7710053187

The annexed notes 1 10 34 form an intepral parn o
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I!M&? 11,132 23054d72!7 12 | 456,11 2‘267

A~

hicl Exedutive Offlcer




Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited
Statement of Investment [ncome
For the year ended 31 December 2015

The annexed noles 1 to 34 {onm an inkegral part of

Yooy
Ui rovs.

neisl slalements.

Chairman irector

Direcior
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Ststwiory Fuls Aggregate
Coavenllonal Acchdeat Nop-unitlsed Unldi Liaked s o014
N Busincys and llenlil Invest ¢ Lusi
e
Buwalners Liok Susiness
{Rupees)
Lncome from Trading Invesimenis
Uneealised approcintion in value
of government securitics 13.5 - - 3,917,813 44,385,974 £3,)03,747 294,127,556
Unrenlised appreciation’ {dinvinuion) in value
of lisied equities and units of open end
rownual funds I5.13 - - 8,126,479 (4,273,406) JB53,073 114,700,572
Unrcalised appreciation’ (dimunition) in valoe
oiher fixed income secuxilics 139 - - ET7.481 2,149,141 3,027,212 {3,463, 485)
REAWT 00 GOVELNINENS SECUTilies - - 160,484,309 655,730,536 827215345 535,426,856
Retumn on other lixed income securities - - 3,351,056 B,234.932 11,085,938 [4,699.323
. Dividend income - - 36,857 32,258,053 33,204,710 1614, 286
Gain / {(loxs} on disposal of trading
lavestinents:
- Units of open end mutual funds - - 13,895,482 50,994,909 64,890,391 25,722,080
- Listed equitics - - - 416,858 416,658 1,575,603
- Other fiaed income sccuritics - - - - - {21.000)
- Governmenl securitics - - 28,974,483 83,312,236 112,286,719 10,743,600
- - 42,869.965 134,714,003 177,593,968 33,020,284
Grosa invesimend Income from
trading Investments - - 215,474,460 884,805,513 1,110,184,29} 095,1253%7
income (rom non - trading
mvestments
Rehun on government securities 13,183,909 6,680 - 1,306,965 14,497,458 7,890,282
Return on bark deposils 7,066,498 4,913 6,448,156 35,481,265 49,410,842 36,103 686
10,250,307 11,603 6,448,156 36,786,230 61,498,296 53,993,968
Gain { (los1) on dispasal of non- :
trading investments:
- Unis of open end mutual funds - - - - - -
- Listed equities - - - - - .
- Govermment securilies 11,117 - - - 21,337 {96T)
22,337 - - - 22,337 {867}
Gross invesiment income from non
trading investments 20,272,644 11,603 6,448,156 36,788,230 63,520,613 53,993,001
impainnent in the value of invesiments 15.12 (80,106) - - - {30,106) -
Net investment income Irom non-tradiog
investment 20.] 911538 11,60 G,ﬁg..l."‘ 36‘7881130 63,440,527 53,993.001
Less: Tax on dividen! - - - {4,014,716) (4,014,716) {166,313)
Net investment Income - Torsl 20,192,538 11,603 231,522,616 917,583.347 1,169,710,104 1,048.952,085

I



Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
_ For the year ended 31 December 2015

l’l

1.2

2.1

.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 4 August 2008asa
public unlisted company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company started its operations from 24 April
2009. The registered office of the Company is located at 1st floor, Islamabad Stock Exchange Towers, 55-B, Jinnah
Avenue, Biue Area, Islamabad whilc its principal place of business is located at 3rd Floor, The Forum, Khayaban-c-
Jami, Clifton, Karachi. The Company is a subsidiary of Adamjee Insurance Company Limited and an associate of
IVM Intersurer B.V, each having a holding of 74.28% and 25,72% (2014: 74.28% and 25.72%) respectively in the
share capital of thc Company. IVM Intersurer B.V. has nominated Hollard Lifc Assurance Company Limited
{("HLA™), an associate company of [VM Intersurer B.V. to act on its behalf in respect of matters relating to the
Company. HLA is South Africa's largest private sector insurance company.

The Company is engaged in life assurance business carrying on non-participating business only. In accordance with
the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Company has cstablished a shareholders’ fund and the-
following statutory funds in respect of each class of its life assurance business:

- Conventional Business

- Accident and Health Business

- Individual Life Non-unitised Investment Linked Business
- Individual Life Unit Linked Business

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 1] November 2015 approved the commencement of Window
Family Takaful Operations by the Company. The Shareholders approved the Board's decision in the EOGM held on
10 December 2015. The Company has filed an application to SECP under Rule 6 of Takaful Rules, 2012 to
undertake Window Family Takaful Operations.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared on the format of financial statements issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan through the Securities and Exchange Commission (Insurance) Rules, 2002 {SEC
(Insurance) Rules, 2002] vide 5.R.0. 938 (1) /2002 dated 12 December 2002,

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1934, the Insurance QOrdinance, 2000 and SEC
(Insurance) Rules, 2002, In case the requirements differ, the provisions of and directives issued thereunder of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and SEC (Insurance} Rules, 2002 shall prevail.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed in
accounting policics relating to invesiments.

Yo



3.2

33

34.

3s.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The results of management estimates and assumption form the basis of making the judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Judgments made by the
management in the application of approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, that havc significant
cffect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material judgment arc disclosed in note 31
to these financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Amounts presented have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

New, Amended and Revised Standards and Interpretations of IFRS

IFRS 10 ‘Consclidated Financial Statements’, IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements’, IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Intcrests in
Other Entities’ and IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurements' became applicable from January 1, 2015, as per the
adoption status of IFRS in Pakistan.

The application of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 did not have any impact on the financial statements of the
Company.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurcment, consolidates the guidance on how to measure fair value, which was spread
across various IFRS, into one comprehensive standard. It introduces the use of an exit price, as well as extensive
disclosure requirements, particularly the inclusion of non-financial instruments into the fair value hierarchy. The
application of IFRS 13 did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company, except certain additional
disclosures mentioned in note 28.4.

Standards, Interpretations And Amendments To Approved Accounting Standards,
that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2016:

- Amendments to TAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016) introduce severe restrictions on the use of revenue-based
amortization for intangible assets and explicitly state that revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used
for property, plant and equipment. The rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortization
methods for intangible assets is inappropriate can be overcome only when revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are *highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

. Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments to IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial
Statements and IAS 28 — Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures) [effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016] clarifies (a) which subsidiaries of an investment entity are consolidated; (b)

DN



exemption to present consolidated financial statements is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an
investment entity; and (c) how an entity that is not an investment entity should zpply the equity method of
accounting for its investment in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity. The amendments are
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations — Amendments 1o IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016) clarify the accounting for the acquisition of
an interest in a joint operation where the activities of the operation constitute a business. They require an
investor to apply the principles of business combination accounting when it acquires an interest in a joint
operation that constitutes a business. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company's financial

statements.

Amendment to IAS 27 'Separate Financial Statcment’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016) allows entities to use the equity methad to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in their separate financial statements. The amendment is not Jikely to have an impact on
Company’s financial statements.

Agriculture: Bearer Plants [Amendment to JAS 16 and IAS 41] (effective for annual periods beginning on or
afier 1 January 2016). Bearcr plants arc now in the scope of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment for
measurement and disclosure purposes. Therefore, a company can elect to measure bearer plants at cost.
However, the produce growing on bearer plants will continue to be measured at fair value less costs to seil
under IAS 41 Agriculture. A bearer plant is a plant that: is used in the supply of agricultural produce; is
expected to bear produce for more than one period; and has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural
produce. Before maturity, bearer plants are accounted for in the same way as self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment during construction. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s
financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 cycles (amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or afier |
January 2016). The new cycle of improvements contain amendments to the following standards:

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. IFRS 5 is amended to clarify that if an
entity changes the method of disposal of an asset {or disposal group) i.e. reclassifies an asset from held for
distribution to owners to held for sale or vice versa without any time lag, then such change in classification is
considered as continuation of the original plan of disposal and if an entity determines that an asset {or disposal
group) no longer meets the criteria to be classified as held for distribution, then it ceases held for distribution
accounting in the same way as it would cease held for sale accounting.

IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments- Disclosures’. IFRS 7 is amended to clarify when servicing arrangements on
continuing involvement in transferred financial assets in cases when they are derecognized in their entirety are
in the scope of its disclosure requirements. [FRS 7 is also amended to clarify that additional disclosures required
by ‘Disclosures: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financia! Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS7)" are not
specifically required for inclusion in condensed interim financial statements for all interim periods.

IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’. IAS 19 is amended to clarify that high quality corporate bonds or government
bonds used in determining the discount rate should be issued in the same currency in which the benefits are to
be paid. '

IAS 34 *Interim Financial Reporting’. IAS 34 is amended to clarify that certain disclosures, if they are not
included in the notes to interim financial statements and disclosed elsewhere should be cross referred.

The above amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

ycowan



4.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, except for the policies and standards disclosed
in note 3.4 of the financial statements which have been adopted by the Company during the year.

Types of Insurance contracts
a) Conventional Business

The Conventional Business includes individual life, group life and group credit life assurance.
i) Individual life

The individual life business segment provides coverage to individuals against deaths and disability under
conventional policies issued by the Company. Additional riders are included on the discretion of the
policyholder. The business is written through bancassurance, tele-sales and direct sales made by head office.

Revenue recognition
Premiums are recognised once the related policics have been issued and the premiums have been received.
Recognition of policyholders’ liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory fund are determined based on the appointed actuary’s
valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance,
2000.

Claim expenses

Claims expenses are recognised on the earlier of the policy expiry or the date when the intimation of the insured
event giving rise to the claim is received. Surrender of conventional business policies is made after these have
been approved in accordance with the Company’s Policy.

Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated
claims settlement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet.

Liability for claims “Incurred But Not Reported” (IBNR) is included in the policyholders' liabilities in
accordance with the estimates recommended by the appointed actuary.

ii) Group life and group credit life

Group Life contracts are mainly issued to employers to insure their commitments to their employees as required
under the West Pakistan Industrial and Commercial Employment (Standing Orders) Ordinance, 1968.

The group life business segment provides coverage to members / employees of business enterprises and
corporate entities, against death and disability under group life assurance schemes issued by the Company. The
group credit life business segment provides coverage to a group of members or subscribers registered under a
common platform against death and disability. The busincss is written mainly through direct sales force and
bancassurance.
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Revenue recognition

Premiums are recognised as and when due. In respect of certain group policies the Company continues to
provide insurance cover even if the premium is received after the grace period. Provision for uneamed
premiums is included in the policyholders’ liabilities.

Recognition of policyholders’ liabilities

Policyholders' liabilities inctuded in the statutory fund arc determined based on the appointed actuary’s

valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance,
2000.

Claim expenses
Claims expenses are recognised on the date the insured event is intimated.
Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated

claims settlement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet.

Liability for claims "Incurred But Not Reported” (IBNR) is included in the policyholders' liabilities in
accordance with the estimates recommended by the appointed actuary.

Experience refund of premium

Experience refund of premium payabie to policyholders' is included in policyholders' liability in accordance
with the policy of the Company and the advice of the appointed actuary.

b) Accident and Health Business

Accident and Health Business provides fixed pecuniary benefits or bencfits in the nature of indemnity or a
combination of both in casec of accident or sickness to individuals. The risk underwritten is mainly related to
medical expenses relating to hospitalisation and death by accidental means. This business is written through
direct sales by the head office as well as through tele-sales.

Revenue recognition
Premiums are recognised once the related policies have been issued and the premiums have been received.
Recognition of policyholders’ liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory fund are determined based on the appointed actuary’s
valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance,
2000.

Claim expenses

Claims expenses are recognised after the date the insured event is intimated and a reliable estimate of the claim
amount can be made,

Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated
claims settlement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet. )
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d)

Liability for claims "Incurred But Not Reported" (IBNRY) is included in the policyholders' liabilities in
accordance with the estimates recommended by the appointed actuary.

Non-unitised Investment Linked Business

Individual Life Non-unitised Investment Linked Business provides life assurance coverage to individuals under
universal life policies issued by the Company. Benefits are expressed in terms of account value of the
policyholder account which is related to the market value of the underlying assets of the investment fund. The
risk underwritten is mainly death and disability, This business is written through bancassurance channel and
brokers.

Revenue recegnition
Premiums are recognised once the related policies have been issued and the premiums have been received.
Recognition of policyholders’ liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory fund are determined based on the appointed actuary’s
valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance,
2000,

Claim expense

Claim expenses arc recognised on the earlier of the policy expiry or the date when the intimation of the event
giving risc to the claim is received.

Surrender of non-unitised investment linked business policies is made after these have been approved in
accordance with the Company’s Policy.

Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation 1o unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated
claims settiement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet.

Liability for claims "Incurred But Not Reported” (IBNR) is included in the policyholders’ liabilities in
accordance with the estimates recommended by the appointed actuary.

Unit Linked Business

Individual Life Unit Linked Business provides life assurance coverage to individuals under unit-linked
investment policies issued by the Company. Benefits are expressed in terms of account value of the policyholder
account which is related to the market value of the underlying assets of the investment fund. Various types of
riders (Accidental death, family income benefits etc.) are also sold along with the basic policies. Some of these
riders are charged through deductions from policyholders fund value, while others are not charged i.c. additional
premium is charged there against. The risk underwritten is mainly death and disability. This business is written
through bancassurance channel, brokers and Company's own agency distribution channel.

Revenue recognition

Premiums {including first year, renewal and single premiums) are recognised once the resulted policies have
been issued / renewed against receipt and realization of premiums.
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4.3

Recognition of policylholders' liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory fund are determined based on the appointed actuary’s
valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance,
2000.

Claim expenses

Claim expenses are recognised on the earlier of the policy expiry or the date when the intimation of the event
giving rise to the claim is received.

Surrender of unit linked business policies is made after these have been approved in accordance with the
Company's Policy.

Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated
claims settlement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet.

Liability for claims "Incurred But Not Reported” {IBNR) is included in the policyholders' liabilities in
accordance with the estimates recommended by the appointed actuary.

Reinsurance contracts held

Individual policies (including joint life policies underwritten as such} are reinsured under an individual life
reinsurance agreement whereas group life and group credit life policies are reinsured under group life and group
credit life reinsurance agreements respectively.

Reinsurance premium

Reinsurance premium expense is recognised at the same time when the related premium income is recognised. It is
measured in line with the terms and conditions of the reinsurance treaties.

Claim Recoveries

Claim recoveries from reinsurers are recognised at the same time when the claim is intimated and giving rise to the
right of recovery is recognised in the books of accounts of the Company.

Experience Refund

Experience refund receivable for re-insurance is included in the re-insurance recoveries of claims.

Amount due from / to reinsurer

All receivables (reinsurer's share in claims, commission from reinsurer and experience refund) and payables

(reinsurance premium) under reinsurance agreements are recognised on net basis in the Company's financial
statements, only under the circumstances that there is a clear legal right of off-sct of the amounts.

Amounts duc from / to reinsurers arc carried at cost which is the fair valuc of the consideration to be received / paid
in the future for services rendered / received, less provision for impairment, if any.

Receivables and payabiles relating to insurance contracts

These include amounts due to and from agents and policyholders’ which are recognised when due.
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4.5

Stalutery funds

The Company maintains statutory funds in respect of each class of life assurance business in which it operates.
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the Company are referable to the respective statutory funds. However,
where these are not referable to statutory funds, these are allocated to shareholders' fund on the basis of actuarial
advice. Apportionment of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, whenever required between funds are made on
the basis certified by the appointed actuary of the Company. Policyholders’ liabilities have been included in
statutory funds on the basis of the actuarial valuation carried out by the appointed actuary of the Company on the
balance sheet date as required under section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000,

Policyholders' liabilities

a)

Conventional Business

i) Individual Life

Policyholders' liabilities constitutc the rescrves for basic plans and riders attached to the basic plans and
reserves for IBNR Claims.

Policy reserves pertaining to the primary plans are based on Full Preliminary Term - Net Premium method using
SLIC (2001-05) Individual Life Ultimate Mortality Table mortality table and a discounting factor interest rate of
3,75% per annum. This table reflects the recent mortality experience in Pakistan and in line with the
requirements of Circular No: 17 of 2013 issued by the SECP Insurance Division on September 13, 2013, The
interest rate is considerably lower than the actual investment return the Company is managing on its
conventional portfolio, The difference between the above and actual investment return is intended to be
available to the Company for meeting administrative expense and for providing margins against adverse
deviations. Policy reserves for both waiver of premium and accidental death riders are based on net unearned
premiums.

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims

IBNR reserves for riders ase held as a percentage of rider premium eamed in the valuation year in view
of grossly insufficient claims experience.

i} Group Life and Group Credit Life

b)

<)

Policy reserves for these plans are based on the unearned premium method nct of allowances made for
acquisition expenses, unexpired reinsurance premium and profit commission. Consideration is also given to the
requircment for a Premium Deficiency Reserve. The reserves also comprise allowance for "Incurred But Not
Reported” (IBNR) claims. The provision for 'Incurred But Not Reported’ (IBNR) claims as included in
policyholders' liability is estimated as 10% of the uncarned premium for the year. This approach is being used as
the Company has recently started business. Once sufficient experience of claim reporting patterns have built up
in the Company's books, the appointed actuary of the Company will determine IBNR in accordance with these
claim log patterns for each line of business separately. Appropriate margins will be added to ensure that the
reserve set aside are resilient to changes in the experience.

Accident and Health Business

Currently there are no policyholders' liabilities to consider in this statutory fund.

Non-unitised Investment Linked Business

Policyholders' liabilities constitute the account value of investment linked contracts as well as non-investment or

risk reserves of these contracts. Risk reserves constitiite liabilities held to account for risks such as death and
risk only riders (accidental death and disability, monthly income benefit, waiver of premium, etc.). Reserves for
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risk only contracts where premiums are level over the term of the contract are based on the Net Premium
Mecthod whereas reserves for age related risk contracts arc bascd on nct unearned premiums.

- Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims

IBNR reserves for riders are held as a percentage of rider premium earned in the valuation year in view
of grossly insufficient claims expericnce.

d) Unit Linked Business

Policyholders' liabilities constitute the fund value of unit linked contracts as well as non-investment or risk
reserves of these contracts. Risk reserves constitute liabilities held to account for risks such as death and risk
only riders (accidental death and disability, monthly income benefit, waiver of premium, cte.). Reserves for risk
only contrucls where premiums are level over the term of the contract ure based on the Net Premium Mcthod
whereas reserves for age related risk contracts arc based on net uncarncd premiums.

- Incurrcd But Not Reported (IBNR) claims

IBNR reserves for riders are held as a percentage of rider premium earned in the valuation year in view
of grossly insufficient claims experience.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all permanent, confirmed and full time employees
who have completed minimum qualifying eligible service period of six months. Contribution to the fund is made
and expense is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at each year end using the Projected
Unit Credit Method. The relevant details relating to the fund are disclosed in note 9, Gratuity is based on
employees' last drawn gross salary. Provisions arc made to cover the obligations under the scheme on the basis of
actuarial assumptions,

The measurement differences representing actuarial gains and losses, the difference between actual investment
returns and the return implied by the net interest cost/income are recognised immediately with a charge or credit to
the profit and loss and revenue account, International Accounting Standards 19, dealing with Employee Benefits
requires that these should be recognised in other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the format of presentation
and disclosure of financial statements notified by SECP does not require preparation of statement of comprehensive
income, resultantly the charge / credit has been taken to profit and loss and revenue account.

Employees accumulated compensated absences

The Company accounts for the liability in respect of employees accumulated compensated absences in the period in
which they are eamned.

Acquisition costs -

These are costs incurred in acquiring insurance policies, maintaining such policies, and include without limitation
all forms of remuneration paid to insurance agents.

Commission and other expenses are recognised as cxpease in the earlier of the financial year in which they are paid
and the financial year in which they become payable, except that commission and other expenses which are directly
referable to the acquisition or rencwal of specific contracts are recognised not later than the period in which the
premium to which they refer is recognised as revenue.

Taxation

Tax charge for the year comprises current and deferred taxation.
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4.11

4.12

4,13

4.13.1

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing
laws for taxation on income earned. The charge for current tax is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary,
relating to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalised during the year.

Deferred

Deferred taxation is recognised using balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences arising
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Deforred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits
will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the assct is realised or the liability is settlcd, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been cnacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it i$ probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Other creditors and accruals

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks, term deposits with
original maturity of three months or less and cash in hand and highly liquid short term investments that are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and which are readily convertible into cash.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets

The Company has classified its financial assets on initial recognition into the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financiat assets designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition include those group
of financial assets which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis.
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b) Held to maturity

Financial assets with fixed or detcrminable payments and fixed maturity, where management has both the intent
and the ability to hold til! maturity.

¢} Loans and receivables

These arc non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market.

d) Available for sale

These are non derivative financial assets that are cither designated as in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provision of the
instrument. Investments other than those categorised into 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
category are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the securities. Financial assets classified 'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss / revenue account. All regular way purchases and sales of
investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention are
recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date when the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' are subsequently measured at their fair values and
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in the profit and loss / revenue account. Available
for sale investments are subsequently measured at the lower of cost or market value {(market value being taken as
lower if the reduction is other than temporary) in accordance with the requirements of the SEC (Insurance) Rules,
2002 and the reduction is recognised as a provision for impairment in value of financial assets. Any change in the
provision for impairment in value of investment is recognised in the profit and loss/ revenue account. Amortization
of premium/ discounts on acquisition of investments is carried out using effective yield method and charged to
profit and loss/ revenue account, as appropriate. Investments classified as held to maturity and loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost less any impairment losses, taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition by using the effective interest rate method.

Fair / market value measurements

For investments in quoted equity securities, the market value is determined by using Stock Exchange quotations-at
the balance sheet date. For investments in Government securities, the market value is determined using
PKRV/PKISRY rates. The fair market value of Term Finance Certificates is as per the rates issued by the Mutual
Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) and the fair value of open end fund is as declared by the relevant fund.

Impairment against financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for ‘available for sale’ financial assets, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the carrying value and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit and loss { revenue account, as the case may
be, is taken to the profit and loss account / revenue account. For financial assets classified as loans and receivables’
and 'held to maturity’, a provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Company
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the eriginal terms. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash inflows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabifities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statement only
when there is a legally enforceable right to sct off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneousty.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time the Company becomes 2 party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financiat liabilitics are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attribute transaction cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at fair/ market value or amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, as the case may be.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, except
for capital work in progress which is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. All assets having cost exceeding
minimum threshold as determined by the management are capitalized. All other assets are charged in the year of
acquisition. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

In accordance with the requirements of Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) No. 2 for the accounting and
financial reporting of *ljarah", ijarah arrangements are accounted for as 'Assets held under ijarah’ whereby the Bank
wransfers its usufruct to the Company for an agreed period for an agreed consideration. Assets held by the Company
under ijarah are not recognised in the balance shect of the Company. Rental payments made under these ijarah are

recognised as an expense in the Company’s profit and loss accountona straight line basis over the ijarsh term.

Subsequent Costs

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow towards the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenses arc charged to the profit and loss account / revenue
account during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged using the straight line method at the rates specified in note 19 to these financial statements.
Depreciation on additions is charged from the month of addition and on disposals up to the month of disposal.
When parts of an item of asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items in the fixed
assets.
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The assets’ useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if
appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposal

An item of tangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or where no future economic benefits are expected to be
realised from its use or disposal. Gains or losses of an item of tangible asset is recognised in the profit and loss
account.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Software development cost are capitalized only to the extent where future economic benefits that are to be derived
from such capitalization are expected to flow to the Company.

Subsequent Costs

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with them will fiow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other expenses are charged to the profit and loss/ revenue account during the
financial period in which these are incurred.

Amortization

Intangible assets are amortiscd using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives (refer note 19). The
useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at acquisition cost less impairment losses, if any.
Capital work in progress

Capital Work in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost consists of expenditure incurred and
advances made in respect of assets in the course of their construction and instailation. Transfers are made to -
relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

Impairment of non financial assets (excluding deferred tax)

Non financial assets are subject to impairment review if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the assets and the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows from the
asset discounted at a rate that reflects market interest rates adjusted for risk specific to the assets. If the recoverable
amount of an intangible asset or tangible asset is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the profit and loss / revenue account and the carrying value of the asset reduced by the amount of
the loss. A reversal of an impairment loss on intangible assets is recognised as it arises provided the increased
carrying value does not exceed that which it would have been had no impairment loss been recognised.
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Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
reporting currency equivalents using the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. Exchange
differences on foreign currency translations arc taken to the profit and loss account / revenue account.

Othcr revenue recognition

. Retum an fixed income and government securitics are recognised on time proportion basis using the effective
interest rate method.

- Return on deposits, loans to employees and loans to policyholders are recognised on a time proportion basis.

. Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is
established.

- Gain or loss on sale of investments is included in the profit and loss account / revenue account in the year in
which disposal has been made.

- Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are taken to the profit and loss account in the period in which they
arise.

- For the purpose of the statement of Investment Income / Profit and Loss account, al} income and expenses
on investments, other than those relating to Held to Maturity and Available for Sale are inciuded in the
Income from Trading Investments.

Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or services
(business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment {geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Company's
primary format of reporting is based on business segments.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with that provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company operates in Pakistan only. The Company has four primary business segments for reporting purposes
namely; Conventional Business, Accident and Health Business, Non-Unitised Investment Linked Busincss and Unit
Linked Business. The details of ail operating scgments are described in note 4.1 to these financial statements. The
Company accounts for segment reporting using the classes or sub-classes of business (Statutory Funds) as specified
under the Insurance Ordinance 2000 and SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 as the primary reporting format.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend and appropriations to reserves except appropriations required by law or determined by the appointed
actuary or allowed by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 are recognised in the year in which these are approved,

Earning Per Share (EPS)

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for the shareholders. Basic EPS is caleulated by
dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Therc are'no dilution effect on the EPS and as such these are not
presented.
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ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAII UP SIIARE CAPITAL

045 2014 Note 015 2014
(Number of ordinary chares) {Rupers)
93,549,400 93.549.400 Qrdinary shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid in cash 3! 935 494 935i494|000
Adamjec Company Limited and its nominces and [VM Intersurer B.V. and ils nominces respectively hold 63,490,295 (2014: 69,490,295) sharcs and 24,059,105

(2014; 24,059,103} ordinary shares of Lhe Company at 31 December 2015.

ANALYSIS OF ACCUMULATED SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) AS
SHOWN IN TIIE BALANCE SHEET

Details of the movement in net accumulated surplus is a5 follows:

Accumulated surplus in slotemen of changes in cquity at beginning of e year ’ 70,220,317 55214451
" Surplus in profit nnd loas accounl for the year 871,452 } 5,003 466
Accurulatcd surpluz in t of changes in equity before capital contribution
by sharchalders® fund 2t end of the year 71,091,769 70,220317
Capital contribution balanca in siatement of changes in equity a1 beginning of the year {641,511,570) {571,685,570),
Capital transfers to statutory fun during the year [ ¥ (12,300,000} (70,126,000
Capital contribution balance in t of changes in equity a1 end of the yoar G55611,5710) (641,811,570
Nel wecgmuluied deBit ax m the cad df e year ‘?“i"’l“ll ’STI é?l Ilill
Transfer of Rs. 13.8 million dutig the current year have been made to the Unit Linked Busincss Fund (2014: Rs, 27.47 million o Unit Linked Business Fund, Rs. 17.24
million ko Mon-Unitised 1 Linked Busi Fund and R, 25.42 million 10 Conventional Business Fund).
FOLICYHOLDERS' LIABILITIES Stalutory Funds Aggregate
Note Conventionsl Accldent snd Nan-unitised Unit Linked 015 2014
Gruss of reinsuranee Business Hesilh Busl 1 t Busl
Linked Business
(Rupees}
Actarial liability relating 10 luture cvenls 182,562,327 - 1,059.2071,993 11,769,501,535 14,011,271 255 8,103,014,007
Provision for incurred but not reported claims 14,786,004 - - - 14,786,004 17,724,192
147,348331 - 2&2&01'”3 1 lﬂi‘!ﬂlas Iilﬂliios‘}aﬂ $,120,738.21
Net of reiasurance
Actuarial Liability rclating 1o future cvenls 98,328,065 04 2,057,292,293 11,693,709,907 13,849,330.363 7.980,741,4i6
Provisian fos i d bart pod reporied elaims 6.567,748 - - - 6,567,148 ) 5712922
8 IM,B!S&I_S 104 057, M} 1 I.SFJI‘?”‘NT uﬁss&g,l 17 ?.986{154&38
The appointed actary of the Company has earried out 3 valuation of the policyholders® liabilitics with respect 1o the Conventional Business, Accident end Health Business, Nen-
unitised Investment Linksd Business and Unit Linked Business (Stotutory Funds) as per scction 50 of the | Ordi 2000, The significant assumptions used in the

valuatjons ace disclosed in note 33 to these financinl starcments.

Provisian for inewrred but not reported claims are included in the Actuarial lability for future events. Amount invelved is not material,

BALANCE OF STATUTORY FUNDS

Statutory Funds Apprepate
C lonal Accldent and Non-nnitised Unit Linked WIS 014
Busloess tealth Gusl lay t Bual
Linked Business
(Ropees)
Policyholders® lisbllities
Balance at beginning ef e ycar 101,211,544 - 1,613,530,651 6,271,711,14} 7,985,454, 238 4.732,158,663
Ipercase f {decrease) during the yenr 3,683,169 104 443,761,642 5,411,99!\,764 $.869.443, 719 3,254 195675
Balsnce a1 cnd of the year 104,895,813 W4 2,057,192,293 11,693,709,907 13,855,898,117 7.986,454,338
Retained earnlngs on olher than
participating business
Balante at beginning of the year (115,666,478} {1,407,149) {95,591,310) (159,258,644) (371,924,081) (443,501,815)
Swrpius / (deficil) for the year {3,205,827) 12,257 113,786,581 184,598,906 305,191,917 71,577,734
Surplus appropristed to sharcholders® fund - - - - - -
Balance at ond of the yeor (118,872,305} (1,394,892) 28,194,771 15,340,162 (66,742, 184} {371.924,081)
Capital contributed by sharcholders’ fund
Batance at beginning of the year 178,123,436 1,511,464 216,732,125 235,444,545 541,811,570 571,685,570
Capital conlribution during the year - - - 13,300,000 13,800,000 70,126,000
Balance al ond of the yoar 178,123,436 1511464 115,731,125 249,244 843 555,611,570 £41 811570
Balsnce of statutory (unds st the year end 164,146,944 116,675 EIIJIQIISQ 111951&71‘ |4&Im£13 8.256&1.82?

Batances in retained carnings arc primerily maintained in apcordance with the SEC Insumnce Rules, 2002 to mect the solvency marging, As of 31 D ber 2015, the Company
has retaincd an aggregate amount of Rs, 273.673 million (2014; Rs. 202511 million) in the Sterutory Funds bascd on the advice of the appointed actoary.

b
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9.2.6

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFIT

As stated in note 4.6, the Company operates a funded gratuity scheme sovering eligible emplayees who have completed the minimum qualifying
eligible service of six manths. Contribution to the fund is made and expense is recognised on the basis of acluarial valuations carried out at each
year end using the projected unit credit method.

Responsibility for governance of the plan, including investment decisions and contribution schedules, lies with the Board of Trustees of the
plan. The Company appoints the Trustees and all trustezs are employess of the Company. Details of the Company's abligation under the staff
gratuity scheme determined an the basiz of an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at 31 December 2015 under the
Projected Unit Credit Method are 83 follows:

Note Gratuity fund
Balance sheet reconciliation 2015 2014
{Rupees)
Present value of defined benefit obligation 9.2.2 41,887,724 28,340,537
Fair valuc of plan assets 823 (32,558,371) (22,041,783)
Impact of uncleared cheques 9.2.1 (186,170 -
Met linbility at end of the year 225 9,143,183 6,298,754

r— L e—————

The difference of Rs. 186,170 between the reported bank statement of Rs. 17,287,400 (refer note 9.3) and accounting records is on account of
the inclusion of benefil payments to the resigning employecs made on 3] December 2015. This amount has also been accounted for in benefits
paid by the company for the year.

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations

Present vatue of defined benelit abligations at

beginning of the ycar 28,340,537 15,674,836
Cutrent service cost 924 7,765,237 4,976,141
Interest cost 9.2.4 4,021,413 2,596,652
Benefits paid during the year ¢23 (4,029,429} {1,621,132)
Remeasutement loss on obligation:

- due to unexpecicd experience 810,595 883,221
- duc to changes in financial assumplions 4,979,371 5830819

924 5,789,966 6,714,040
Present value of defined benefit obligations at end of the year 41,887,724 28,340,537

e T —ee—

Muovement in (air value of plan assels

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 22,041,783 -
Contribulions made by the Company lo the Fund 12,844,940 23,241,629
Interest income on plan assets 9.2.4 3,058,404 -
Benefits paid during the year 9.2.2 {4,029,429) {1,621,132)
Remeasurernent {foss) / gain on plan assets 9.2.4 {1,357,327) 415,286
Fair value of plan asscts at end of the year 32,558,371 . 22,041,783

Expense recogaised in profit and loss / revenue account

Current service cosl 9.2.2 7,765,237 4,976,141
Interest cost 9.2.2 4,021,413 2,596,652
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit abligation 922 5,789,966 6,714,040
Remeasurement loss / (gain) on [air value of plan assets 9.2.3 1,357,327 {415,286)
Interest income on plan ossels 9.2.3 (3,058,404} -
Expense for the year 15,875,539, 13,871,547
Net recognised liability
Net liability at beginning of the year 6,298,754 15,674,836
Expenss recognised in profil and loss account { revenue account 9.2.4 15,875,539 13,871,547
Contributions made to the fund during the year 2.3 {12,844,940) (23,247,629}
Impact of uncleared cheques 9.2.1 (186,170) -
Net liability at end of the year 9.2 9!l 435183 6&98‘754
Estimated Gratuity Cost for the year ending 31 December 2014, is as follows:
2016

{Rupees)
Current service cost 10,955,765
Net jnterest cost ) 1,607,221
Total expense to be recognised in profit and loss / revenue account 1235621986

Yoanes
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Plan assets comprise of following: . 2015 2014

Noie {Rupees) Yenge (Rupees} . %age
Hank balance 11,101,230 53% 11,979,509 82%
Mutual Funds. 8.3.! 15,457,141 47% 4,062,274 18%
Fair value of plan ssacts at end of ihe year 32,8583 71 100% 22,041,783 100%

lavestments of Rs. 6.087 million in mutual funds sre managed by a related porty.
“The principel assumptions used in the actuarial valuations carried out as of 31 December 2015, using the Projected Unit Credit' method, aro as follows:

Gratuity fund
2015 2014
Discount rsle per annum 1LO0% 11.75%
Expected per annum rate of return on pinn assels 11.00% 11.75%
Expected per annum rate of increase in salary level 11.00% 11.00%
Expecled martality rate LIC 94-96 LIC 94-96
Maortality Moriality

table for males iable for males
(rated down by (ried down by
3 years for 3 years for
females) females)

Expected withdrawal rate Age depeadent  Age dependent
The plans expose the Company 1o actuarial risks such ma:

Salary risks

The ricks that the fina) safary st the time of cessation of service is higher then what was sssumed. Since the benefit is calculaied on the final salary, the benefit
amount increases similarky.

Discount risks

The risk of volatile discount rates over the funding lifc of the scheme. The final cffect could go either way depending on the rehtive of salary increascs, timing of
contributions, performance of invesimentt and ouigo of benefity.

Mariality / withdrawsal risks

The risks that the actus) mortality / withdrawal experience is differeat from expected. The effect depends upmmebmeﬂcwmfmdimiwﬁmmdﬂn
benefit,

Investment risks

The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficlest to meet the liabilities. This is managed by Rrmulating an investment policy and guidelines
hased on which iovestmems are made after obisining spproval of trustces of funds.

In case of the funded plans, ihe investment positions are managed within an Assct-Liabilily Matching (ALM}) framework to ensure thal long-term investments are in
line with the obligation under the relirement benefit plan. The Company actively monitort how the d jon and the expected yield of the invesiments are marching
the expected cash outflows arising from the retirement beneiit plan obligations. The Company has not changed the process used to manage it risks from previous
periods. Investments are well diversified. -

The expected returm on phan assets is assumed 10 be the same a5 the discount eate {as required by latemational Accounting Standard {AS19). The actual return
depends on the assets underlying the current {nvestment policy and their performance. Expested yiekds on fixed intorest investments arc baged on gross redemplion
yiclds ag st the balance sheet date, Expeclod return on equity investmonts reflect long-ierm real rates of return expericnced in the market.

Sensitivity analysis (or acluarisl assumptieos

The sensitivity of the defined bencfit cbligalion to changes in the weighted principal assumplions is: (Rupees)

Discount rale (1% increase} (6,249,080)
Discount rate {1% decrease) 7,747,000
Future salary increase rate (1% increase) 8,080,000
Funire salary increase rate (1% decrease) {6,590,000)

The impact on defined benefit obligaiion due to increase in life expoctancy by | year would be Rs. (26,510).

The shove sensitivity analysis are based on a change in Bn assumptlon while hokling all othet assumptions constant. In practice, thiz is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumplions may be comrelsted. When calculating the sensitivity of the deflned benefil obligation to significant assumptions, sama method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projecicd unit credil mathod st the end of the reparting period) has been applied 33 when
calculating the gratuity liobility.

The weighted average duration of the defined benelit bligation is 19.30 years.

The cxpected maturity analysis of wndiscounted relirement benefit plnn is between 4-3 years and the amount involved is Ry, 0.774 million.

Historleal Information

015 2014 2013 012 201

(Rupees)

Present value of defined benefit obligati 41,887,724 28,340,537 15,674,836 11,822,534 7,087,677
Fair value of plan assets {32,558,31) (22,041,783) - - -
impac! of uncleared cheques {186,170} - - - -
Deficit 9.143,I£! 6,298,754 15,674,836 11,522,534 T.08T.677
Experience adjustment 2015 2014 2013 012 2011
Expericace adjusimenis on obligation Jd% 24% {13%) 22% 26%
Experience adjustments on asscl (4%) 2% - N ) -

Yoo



1. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

Conventional Dusiness

Notilicd Claims at the beglnning
of the year

Cash paid for claims setiled in the year
Increase f {(decrease) in liabilitics:
Claims intimated during e yeor
Noilfied claims at the end of the year

Non-uniiised Ilnvestment Linked
Busloess

Notified Claims at the beginning
of the yesr

Cash paid for claims sedled in the year
Increase f (decrease) in liabilities:
Claims intimated during the year
Notifled clalms at the end of the year
Unit Linked Business

Notified Claims at the beglnaivg
of the year

Cash Paid for claims settled in the year
Increase { {decrease) in liabilities:

Claims intimated during the year

Noilfed claims sl the cnd of {he year

1.1

103

Circular 11 of 2014 dated May 19, 2014 issucd by the Securities
agewis:btmkmofmhinndimumebmﬂuinmrdmmw

The unclaimed benefits is described in the circular s
buz have oot been claimed by the policytokdess or their

Pariiculars

Unclaimed matwyity benefits
Unclaimed death benefits
Unclaimed disability benefis
Claims not encashed

keonn

018 2014
Grosy Heingurance Nret Gross Reinsurance Net
(Rupees)

£6,379,793 (37,1580,165) 19,199,528 18,307,407 (26,017,010) 12,290,397
(170,035,110) 180,604,467 (89,430,643) (181,655,721} 126,424,907 (55,230,814)

281,380,418 (192,697,764} 99,652,651 199,728,107 (137.588,162) 62,139,945
o ensosom  osamysen AN, 679703 (1180268 19199528,

11,911,222 (7,009,446) 4,901,776 10,279,961 (5.789,367} 4,490,394
(95,022,455) 4,848,922 (90,173,533) (21,249,018) 4,568,772 {16,680,245)

96,547,368 {5.226,912) 91,310,456 12,880,279 (5,788,651) 17,091,628

13,43 {1,337.436) 5,043,699 11,911,222 (7,009.446) 4901776

45,207,605 {11,969,81) 13,237,718 35431979 20,593,693) 14,838,286
(1,587,158,7%T) 37,817,246 (1,549,341,581)  (1,180,653,225) 14,884,759  (1,165,768,466)

1,658,000,892 (70,681,456) 1587319436 1,190,428,851 (26,260,943)  1,164,167,908
||s,u49400 |u,a34,om 51!115613 45I2I]'?I605 31,0698 13,237.728

anunmiﬁcdclaimsmdamidﬂﬂwhalthhsirmuull December 2015,
As the Company setties il claims obligations within a year, the claim development table has not been presented.

Statement of Age wise Break up of Unclalwed Insuraoce Benefits a3 at 31 December 2015

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECF) has established requirement for all insurers ta disclose
hhﬂ:mtpmw-ibedhlhemmmthuidchculu.

the amounts which have beoome payable in accondance with the terms and condilions of an insursnce policy
beneficiaries. Such unclaimed amousts may fall into the following catcgories:

Total Amount Age-wise breskwp
106 Tiol2 13024 25t0 36 Beyond 36
monthy months monthy months months
(Repees)
177,027,540 $1,634,631 53,035,940 22,321,444 11,004,706 9,030,819
13,341,713 13,341,713 . - - -
1,444,291 1,444,291 - - - B
19,405,773 19,405,773 - - - -
211219317 113,826,408 33033540 22325444 11,004,706 9,030,819
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OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS .
Statutory Fands - Appresate

e Stututosy TERRE
Note  Sharmbelders' O nal  Accidest and  Nes-unithed Unit Linked 7015 2014
Fand Businesa Heakth 1 t Bush
Business Linked
Basiwen
{Ropees)

Sundry creditors 31,664,725 £45,078 . 500 311,350 32,733,453 10,967,538
WithhoKling tax paysble 2,655,683 - - . - 2,655,643 475,648
Sales tan withbolding prysble [ %1 - - - - 18,338 11,088
Rindh Services wx puysble 171,840 - . . - 174,640 35972
EOBI emplayecs” contribation peyable 17,045 - - - . 17,046 1,097
Amunt duc to Adsmios Insrance Compeny -

Linsited - robiled party 2,764,153 . . - - 2,764,153 3,909,342
Aot due 1o Hollerd Intomulons! - relaled party 1.3 14930370 (5.155) . - - 1903015 15319907
Remuerwion prysbia 1o Trupeo « related party 1y - - - LI,Ed1 571,543 X184 446.94)
Remuncralion payable 1o & rclated party iL2 - - - 63858 4,432,408 5,000,746 1,762,590
Workers" Wellure Fund payable 93,171 - - - - 1,17 £08,219
Employoes’ car deposit 1,907,500 - - . - 1,908,500 117N
Zakm payable - matuehy / sumendor . - - 21,881 57,468 110,349 -
Chariy payable - - - - 43,091 48,091 21,487
Brokerage paysbla - - - Jr,mr 200,148 246,367 51,562
Oiber sccrasls - - 18,134 1Bl 6149

__M.HL._EJH- .._..__._m. __J&&HL__EH&!E-_A‘_‘M}L
mwslmmhpaylbblolnhledpnyimnrlhmdklmiosunuiwauvieelﬂellpwmul.

Thkmpceumrupy.bhlolnllledpmyhmwonhe p of dbcretionary § ¢ partolob
This represonta the tochnical suppost foo payabic Lo the relaled party

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 05 w14 I
(Rupesa)

CONTINGENCIES

Claims sgaimit (he Company not acknowicdged as debl ) 12304170 4 283

Nomber of caves 1 3

Thﬁemmhwﬂmmhhhldwthecuwmymnhgw&yw:hmujwdbylhOonxpmﬁnndinm, ds. Howover, g Tetieves that wa significant

lisbity i likely o occur In theso cakct
COMMITMENTS

Whmﬂufwmmhmpﬂﬂuu! 1 December 2015 smountod 1o Re. 16157 million (20£4: Rs. 17.539) for wehicles,

Pot kater than one yesr 9,920,964 4391673
Later than ooe yesr and nal ieber then fiwe years 13,144 B0
i 10650
CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS Note  SharshoMen® Statutary Fands Apsrepate
. Fand Conventional  Accldent and  Non-wsitised Uit Linked 1015 014
Pmzlmess Itenlih ¢ Pl
Bask loked bosl
Cash snd sthers
Cash in bard _ds4m B e - - 43472 T8,
45472 - - - - A5 472 12,608
Cash nl banks
- n currend accourd I ” 11470, 747 | - 17,670,147 14,708,087
= I saving accounls 719,665 35,52 15! 40,430 I.G 32424, 66 92 g6 357,819 927
1. T19,665 '.I'4,WG.619 168,262 40,430 485 LA G 79,743,709 S7T1,583,004

Depaait sentoring within 11 oenths
Term doposit rresipts 132 - - - 0,000,000 308,000,008 360,000,800 -

IL165137 34,006,629 168,263 100,430,484 1,142,424 666 1,339,795, 141 571,660,622
These earry mark-up si ratos sanging from 5% 16 6.5% (2014; 6,5% Lo 7.5%) per anmam,

These: bave (onare of 3 months 1o 12 months and carvying mark=up rate from 5.90% 1o 7,10% pa. These shall mature Jn January 2016 (amounting (o Rs. 260 million) snd in Docensber
2056 (amouning 10 R 100 million).

Caxh and cash equivakonts comprive of the following: Sharshalders” Stuiviory Fumb Aggregate

Fund Conveationnt  Acchieni and Nlu-lulllud Unit Linked 1015 i

Bustness Healih Busi 1
Rasl Baked busl
(Ruy

- cush ln hand 45472 - - - - 45472 12,608
- cash al bank 12,719,665 74,006,629 l“.!ﬂ 40,430,486 B4, 424,886 979,148,709 573.5“\.014
- b deposils with bank - - 60,000,000 200000000 160,000,009

2516;]3? 74,006,629 Iiuil m,ag& 1.041.424,665 é—.":m;““ S72.560, él!
LOAN SECURED AGATNST LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES

MbﬂummmmﬂlmﬂnBORpMﬂwmmudmmMaph:thushﬁhmofunmmhupoﬁchonh, Beyholders, Thess are g My paysbic within 3
ot

howr
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IKVESTMENTS Note 418 2014
(Rupees)
Investenent in Goveraamnt Securities
Financial assets "2l fir vahee thraugh proflt or loss upon initial recognition’ (FYTPL) 152 11,314,503,833 6,266,192,892
Available foc sale (AFS) fLN) ITIRATI13 514,835.81%
—lsErasL e, RO
Fund wise breakup of government Shareho Statutery Funds Aggregate
secmrities - FVTPL Fuod Conventionsl  Aetldentsnd  New-uniibied Unit Lioked 015 2014
Rutloess Healih 1 Busl
Business Linked Buslness
Nove (L
18 Year Pakistan Investiment Bonds - - - 4465131 - 14,465,131 1,141,416,863
$ Year Pakisian Investiment Bonds - - - 55,606,546 111975074 171,403,620 369,449,296
3 Year Pakistan Imvestroont Bonds . - - DLASIZAN6 4,741,703,900 $,657,316,724 4,715,341,833
12 Month Treasury Bills - - - 362,845,590 214,490,095 L6TT, 537,485 -
6 Moalk Treasury Bills - - - 469,576,674 1,110,621,39% 1,180,198,673 -
3 Menth Treasury Bilks - - - - 396,674,200 396,674,180 24,953,400
Government of Pakisian arah
Sukuk Bonds hd - - - 191,130,004 101,330,000 15,031 S04
1521 & 154 - - - m‘m 9&7.1!7'016 Ilgldawﬁg 6&6&9?%892
Abave investments are managod by a refaicd pasty. Thess bal wre depasited in an 1PS with & relaiod party.
Fund wise breakup of governmest Sharchold, Sintuiery Fuads Aggregute
securities - AFS Fand Cenvestions!  Accident and  Nen-unithed Unit Linked wis 2014
Businens Hlealib lavesiment Business Tt
Business Linked Buslaess
Notr (Rupees)
§ Year Pakictan Investnent Bopds - 14,066,098 - - - 14,066,098 23,795,958
3 Year Pakistan Invesoment Hoods 3.2,/ 19,5 - - - 57,040,658 156,311 654 198,333,365
12 Month Treany Bills 20,644 543 16,629.301 9LAM - - 37,365,684 -
 Muonih Treasory Bills LABIATL  1I0531,025 - - - 155,722,997 135,376,606
1 Month Treasuxy Bills - . - - - - 157,380,836
] 16 181516215 JF L - 57,040,658 3738471 514,386,525
Mrket value of povernment sccurilics
85 a1 31 December 2015 170, 719981 185.405.380 91,000 - §1,384, 144 §1,978 525595471
Iuhﬂeshmwilhcuryh'mofhIDSﬂﬂlh(ﬁuﬂmﬁn‘h”uﬁllﬂ)&mﬂdﬁmkmmﬁmh d: with thee recpss
laid down in section 29 of the Insurancs Ordinance, 2000.
Had the classifbed a3 available for sale been valued in dance with the requi of Internationa) Acccunting Standard 39, Fioancial |
Rerognition sad M ¥, their carying valwe would have been higher by Rs 15,31 million {2014 higher by Ry, §0.70% mitlion).
Above invesiments of Rz, 273.76 million (2014: Rs. 417.536 miltion) are depasited in an 1P5 accound with a related pacty.
Pariiculars of gavernment securitles
Nawt of the investmeots Caurylng Face Tenor Muturity Principal Caupos rute Canpan paymest
ulue valug pariads payment per spaum (Y}
Financlal assets sl [air value {R )]
thromgh profltor lass upon
inlvial recognition*
Pakistan [nvestment Bamls 24,409,289 21,301,877 B years Juty-k0 o July-20 Om maturity 12.00% Hall -yeatly
55,842 50,000 D years August-08 to On maturity 12.00% Hail -yearly
Augusi-18
ldliiISSI ]31 21,351 RT7
1?‘.‘|481 Isll! 251,750,000 § years July13 to July-$8 On maturity 1L.50% Half -ycarly
1,521,366,022  1,425,900,000 3 yourn Julyi4to July-17  On maburity 11.25% Hal€-yearly
1,045,723,321  2.969,200,000 1y July-13 to July-46 On matusity 11.25% Hal -yourly
1,090,2E7.381  1,050,000,000 3 years March-15 10 On mansity 275% Half -yearly
March-18
SIGSTIJIGI?N 5 445i| D0, 0410
Trensury Bills 197,855,781 200,000,000 1 enonths Decomber-15 1o On manarity NA WA
March-16
198,810,419 200,000,000 3 moaths Novembes-15 to Cm snasurity WA NA
Febnmey-16
ST 05500000
97,717,010 975,000,000  6monhs  July-l3 1o Janusrye  On msturity NA NA
1]
47435388 43,000,000 & months September-15 to On matusity NiA WA
March-15
1159.986215  1,168,000000 6 months Augusi-15 to On maturizy WA NA
February-16

2, 1R0.198673 al‘] 1,000,000
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Nawe of ihe investasils Carrying Face Temor Maturity Frincipsl Coupen rale Coupan paymenl
value valus prrieds paymenl per aunem (%)
——— (Rupeen)
199,690,735 902,900,000 12 months January-15 1o On maburity NA NA
Janvary-16
616,315,103 620,000,000 12 months Februarp- 15 to On manity N/A NA
Februmry-16
97,919,107 100,000,000 12months  Aprik1 5t April- On maurity WA NiA
16
§22.952,873 850000000  12months  uly-E5toJuly-16  Onmanmity NA NA
240,595,667 250,000,000 12 months August-15 to On maturity NA WA
Auguae-16
ZIGTT'SJTil-HS 2|?1‘2|9l)0|m0
Government of Pakistan Jjarsh 101,130,000 160,000,000 3 yoars December-15 10 On maturity 5.895% Half -yearly
Sukuk Bond December- 14
Avalinble for ssle
Pakistan Invesiment Bonds 24 066,098 23,000,000 § yoars July-14 to July-19 O emaburity [1.50% Half -yearly
136,331,654 157,000,000 3 yours Juby b4 ta July-17 On maturity 11.15% Hall -yeady
Freasury Bills
20,736,362 21,000,000 12 months March-15 w On cutarity A WA
March-14
16,629,302 17,000,000 12 meaths  Apil-15 1o Apeil- On maturity NA WA
1%
37&6.'"“4 ESIMOIM
$0,176007 90900000 6 months Augtut-15 o Ow maurity WA WA
Februscy-16 :
66,102,390 £7,000,000 6 months Seplember-15 o O maturity WA NA
Murch-14
153,223,897 (57
Net marestised appreciation § (dmisution) an 2813
ope t securieh Sharehaidery’  Cosvemtonal  Accldestand  Nes-saltind Unik Liked Aggregate
*al [l valme through profil ar bay Fund Buslams Huakth Bushaess  1svesimest Lisked Buslness
wpaa initis) recoguition’ Busimess
(Rupres)
Market value of investments - - . LA1T 304,757 AR AV NTE 11,.314,583,833
Less: Carying valoe of (belore
for the year ended 31 December 2015) - - - (l,!l!,gl_l, )] (9443,111,102} {11,261,508,846)
Recognized i Revenue Accomnt - - - 59]1&13 L3597 e._.‘!=
2014 L
Sharcholders' ional Accident and Nocr-uniised LUnit Linked Aggregaie
Fund Butinon Health Business Lrvestment Business
Linked Bz
{Rupees)
Mariet valus of invesiments - - 1,390,392 579 487580031 6,266,192,892
Less: Camying value of i {bek
for the year mded 31 December 2014) - . (LIVTOIEE0T)  (4654.146,630) (5.971,06533)
Recognised in R - - 72,473.882 221,653,674 294,127,556
1 { in Fixed 1 Securliies Naiz 01% 2014
(Rupees)
Term Finance Certificates 137 122,170,643 119,191,467
Fund wise breakup ol term Siatuioey Fund At e
finance certillentes Shareholdec’s  Convenilonsl Acchdant Now-unitized Unlt Linked 2015 2014
Nate Fuod Busiwess and Health Bwsl
Butiness Linked
*At fair value through profli or Bullaens
o024 upon Ential recognition” (Rupess)
Temy-Finaoce Certificates 153 - - - 3535]”66 36,918,477 1321 1'0&3 ] Wii‘)l |46?
Particulars of term haaacy certifientes (TFC1) Markal yulus an sl Maturlty Tenor Curreni Rale Prefit
11 December Yeur (Yuars) of proflit p.a Payment
015 014 “a
(Rupees)
Ni tved 1 Linked
TFC‘I Hank Alfalah Limited 5,252,166 34,338.547 2021 3 years 131% Semi-anpmally
Unli Linked Business
TEC's - Bank Alfalah Limited 26,918,477 §4,902 920 wn 8 years 3% Sermi-znmaally

Year

tﬂil'.llllm 3 1‘1I191.46?
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15.13
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[LAF5 N

©ISILL

15.13

Net unrealised appreciation / (diminution) sa 1015
of teem N certlfienten Sharsheldery' € bynal Actidtut snd N Hived Unit Linked Aggraguis
‘al falr value (hraegh profil ar e Fuad Dusineny Healts Builwia  Invasiment Lisked Buslaen
upen luliial recoguiilon’ Busgnen

Markew valua of investments - - - 38,281 166 EEIFAT? 122170442
Less: Carrying value of (befote revaluath
. ] lut e year ended 31 December 2015} - - - [34,174.425) (34,768,736) {169,043421)

grised in R A k - - - 57431 L143.4% 1817.231

2014 “‘
Sharcholdery . C ral Aceidon: snd Nom-ontizod Unit Linked yPr—
Fund Busincss Health Business  Invesoment Linkod Business
Bughooxs
(Rupets)
Market value of investments . - - 34,388,547 24,002,920 119,191,467
Less: Canrying value of # {belors
for the year ended 31 December 2014) - - . {35,327 815} (37261030 {121,654.952)
Kexnguised in B A A -+ - - (999,26} (IldMllln I!I‘MI‘”I
Imvestments bo Nsted eqully securilies nad units of wlua] fwids Mute 1015 W4
(Rypewa}

Financial axsets ‘st fair value Lwough profit or boss epon leltie! moognition’ (FVTPL) 3H 1,166,344, 608 1,170.971,083
Available for sake (AFS} 1542 105,957,141 23 ATLON

anasiyiy il

Breskup of Rsted squily securities sad wails of swival fusds - FVTPL

Note  Sharcheldars’ Statwtnry Funds Aggregaty
Fraad Caaveationsl  Accident and Nos-uniliond UaM Linked 018 2014
Bazisess ealik Iuvmimewt Busluers

Buplaeny Liaked Busisacs

il

Listed equiry securitics 1114 189759 - - - £1,595998 AV 34336821
Units of open-end mutual funds FELY - - - 237,382,157 1,464,43%,86) L7037 1,116,634, 462
LB : —amamsusmsead  unssey L0
Breakap of Yated squlty securiiics sud vulis af sutusl funds - AFS
Listed equity securities 4 r 18,348,779 I - - SS9 - | 14,494,713 I 1 ATLO9E
Units of open-end mutual furads 134 57,195,482 15,000,808 - - - 92195632 5,000,000
6,144,461 15,000,000 - 5549834 - 106,694,393 18,472,098
Provizion for lenpairment in the
value of available for sale _{626.348) {20,106} - - - (106,634} -
75,517, 4919 85%4 - m - lﬂ&#ﬂ"ﬂl 15|471|09!
Murket value of listed equity serurlics
and unity of mumsal fund securities
s 8 ¥ December 2015 35354611 25,116,388 - §,51 0,764 112,002,260 ule‘n,nzs
Had tha i in available for sabe rities been valued in d with Lhe requi of 1 banal A ing Svandard 39, 'Fi a1 T Recoghition
and Measurement, the carrying value of the sbove mentioned investments wiuld have been higher by Ra. 11 Rill] uuBm{?Old Rs. 15.505 miltion).
/.
M in provision for impei against AFS investment is 33 follows: 1S w014
(Rupeas)
Qpening balance . -
Chargs for the yewr 08,654 -
Cloting bainnce 10&5&4 -
Nel Mstd spprecinilon f (diminulien) sn 2015
re-rmensaresieat of lated oqulty sccuritles sad Shsreboldery” lenal  Accidest sad Non-uuithed Unlt Linked AfLgregate
apen-end matual funds 't {atr valer threngh Fund Buslaexs HHealh Business  Investmeni Linked Busluess
profit ar laxy upen nlilsl recogalibon’ Buginess
{Rupers)
Macket value of investmenty L9199 - - 237802157 1,517,024 461 1,766,544 408
Laxs: Canying value of 5 (before
for twe year ended 51 Docomiber 2015) (5,043,855 - - {129,755 478} (1,531,357, 36T) {1,762, 151,182)
Recognised In profit and boss scoounl / revenue 3CCOuNt lSl,_l_IIe - - 11647y (4&13‘“! Il‘ll'l&
2004
Sharcholdery' & ional Accident and Non-unitised Uit Linked Agpregma
Fund HBusinews Health Businots  investment Linked Basiness
Business
{Rupees)
Markel value of investments £j04),559 B - 235,432,225 PIATS 2N 1.170.971,083
Lens: Carrying value of & {bok »
for The year ended 31 Dmlm 014) {235,171} . - {121,260.306) (873,966 646) {1,956.062,121)
Recogrized in profil and koss secount / revenue ocount 83k - . 14,194,919 k00,508,653 114,908,960

Yo
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15141

& Flaancial pssets *sf falr vabuy thraiph prodil or bos: spse ieitisl receguition’

Farricalurs of Fstn] cquity securities and spea-rad st fuady
Tha fece vahe: of ondicary sharce pre botween Ra. 3.5 10 R 10 poc share,

Sharvhaldors' tund

Shancy wf Livted Covieprasdery
Souri Pak Limitcd

b Aveliably for aale

1542

pES LR

Share of Linted Companier
Naliooal Bash of Pekiszan

= Dividend in Sperie

Famj Fotilizcr Limited
Pakistan O Ficlds Limited
Habiy Bank Liwlicd
Linited Bank Limited
Allled Bank Limited
K-Boeric Limited

Hishai Fower Limited

Kok Addu Power Company
Sail Fower Limired

Annck Cement Limbed
Alsha Ssect Mills {Preforence Shares)

Eiwicx of Open end Mutcal Funds

ADL Goveinsusd Sccunidics Fuad
ADL Lilamic Stock Fand

Moczan Dalaoeod Fund

Moczan blapic Fund

MCB Pakistan Assct Aflocation Fund

Canvestions] business
Avaliable for ply

Nea-spitived laveitomcat Buked haslaert
Flamsscial ssets ‘af fubr vabut throngh proft or lots upou lelth racrgaiten”
Undts of Open ad Mutwel Fands

Pakixaan Cach Massgrocat Fuad (reined paty)
MCB Dysacsic Cash Fued (rchated pany)
Mictrobank-Pakistan Sovercign Femd (rdaed pany}
Pukiuss income Esbancomess Fund - A {reinted pariy)

' b, Avallable for sale

15144

Share af Lireed Companics
Habie Bank Licrited

Unlt Endird business

Flasachal nysctn ‘st fair value thrangh probt sr less wpan baltiul recegaitien’
Shares of Listed Companicy

Moczan Bank Limiecd

Falistan Poroloem Limited

HUB Powe Coopany Limilcd

Maphe Leal Ceinest Factory Limited
Packnpes Limited

Aok Petroloum Limied

Lawky Coment Limied

Kod Addu Power Company Limicd
Pakistan Sumki Moiors Compeny Limied
Aloek Cemend Pakistan Limited

Milla1 Traciors. Limitad

Mestle Pakistan Liwived

Engro Forllizer Limited

Hahib Mciropalican Bank Lisival
Vaitod Bask Limita)

Indus Molors Comparny Limited
ICA Pakistan Liowihad

Faldaisa DHliickds Limited
Pakiates Sune 08 Cormpaay Limited
Ararcl Stecls Limited

Handa Alles Cars (Pakisian) Limited
Habibs Bank Limived

Unlis of Open end Mutusl Fands

Metrobank.Fakistan Sovcrcign Fund {related party)

MCH Pakistsn Stock Marke: Fund (relsted poty)

MAC Pakician Johmic Siock Fand {refazed party)

WCE habarale lncome Ford [relased party)

Alfiak GHP Mooey M Fued {Cormerty 3 Mooy Markct Futd)
MCH lamic ABocaiion Fuad (sl party)

MCH Dysamic Alioration Faod {rclsicd party}

Pakistan Cual Macugones Fund {roieted party)

Falictm koconee Fend {relased party) :

Lo

014
Number of Cont Markst raime [remrweye Cont Markst vades
sharm { welty alsares [ umits
—_— (Rt ——— JY S S—
34300 1427436 1A55.193 36,300 142743 P20
1944 31,518 42,491 1,964 515 45309
1450951 La37.430 ] 458951 | 043,553

» 3081 s 1035 1,164,067 6,361,018

Tep62 2980,240 4372518 79,062 2905740 SAYLENT
2008 . X 9,000 - 321,990
37500 L4550 4424250 31500 2045500 491,615

500 31163 114,010 11,500 4,879,799 4,362,640
3™ 1499558 5,157,693 3.1 2AVHRSS 5,571,669
1400 2,500,083 4,555,510 29400 2,500,169 1,193.274

- - - 49,000 5,390,000 5565430
138,000 ISATL 1,200 . . .
"o 1054508 L,147208 . . .
12,008 "I ¥72,000 . - .
15,800 53404 1IL753 - B .
20800 PRALN ) 3355800 - . .
LT . 170 3,300 . 27,57

LT 1.238392 2),472008 37,200,437
TIT80E FRTIT TATLTIS . . .
. . . STO.LE9 4,000,000 6,696,790
1366120 10,008,008 20353191 . . -
LLx ] 5,008,000 518329 - - -
34410 25800900 . . .
13581 [TT T 5,000,000 6,596,798
T, 144,461 35234.611 2847208 43 977435
153,00 I 10000, 08 [ 1021630 . i . I I .
193,774 l!.!.ﬂl umml . - . l
PG TV I N -
. . . agn 2437395 2549313
4T3 L 46501 STLROS 62,000,000 $1033,351
LASLIL 182,499,872 JLIETTE 5] 313430 155T8LIW 170820415
- . - 93 000 #.136
1p23ss0 Ias21sT 221 DIASLI
T . T — - - :

- - B 11,555 4008 543,083
15508 3hnn 800 LI83AES 11,420 2,389,527 1015358
29,000 1,203,437 1575400 &9 300 4,734,108 5 446,020
25,80 1,106,290 LA64,500 5,000 1,075,000 1,106,250
4,000 2,152,154 1,328,440 1,000 172630 610290

2,808 1518324 1,414,336 2,500 1,545,140 1510324

908 450,151 45536 1,700 629034 A

. - . 14,500 254,500 1,144,630
2480 1361559 1,684,020 3,400 1100278 1,261,808

. . - 3,600 595,900 1,092,952

. . . T 572,000 TI1546

6300 1,145,826 1,160,157 5,000 1,104,900 1,107,350

R - - 3,500 1009375 935,435
120 HIAM 00 44,000 1,073,500 1,116,960

. - . 100 50,000 930,000
18008 1405300 1,514,340 18,000 1,261,500 L AGS,200

100,808 TA&0,800 6084000 200,000 6,199,869 7.4460,000

. - - 13533 21383404 FARIEES. |

1090 1,524,008 1315184 . . -
1,200 FLTE [T - . .
S8 152058 1,04, 100 . . -
2000 01390 .« 1,E20858 - . .
1264 451864 532,460 - . .
150 1331584 1,791,084 . . .
1L 1657020 IITIAN - - -
YT SLyeLin 4737447 33293061
1IN0 534,386,7M4 S52ATIINS 6ATISIS 45235778 FaA129?
TAYISIE 4325811 N 3an? 4718016 289599557 MTRIST
ES ] 151500008 P TN - B .
MENS | T MeamaNas 3196k, 164 58 16554293 IS A0T
My TAL69TY 1IN 13465 1.9 AT 7

. . . 110,066 15551 544 AR

. . - 4700 17,045,183 19436504

. . . N7 1029075 L13LT8T

. . - B7.H3 19,000,000 38,056,929

A TLISAANS, LA ARY 86 —TEO ST, Laz3?
JOSNCE T (EY BT e __MATIIR
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15.

161

17.

17.1

17.2

18.

181

18.1.1

182

19.

DEFERRED TAXATION - net 2015 04
{Ruopees)
On taxable temporary differences arising on:
- differences between accmmting book vatue of operating fixed assets and tax base 715,898 -
On deductible temporary differences arising on:
- differ t scoounfing book value of operating fixed assets and tax basa - L178,675
Charge of Rs. 1.895 millien (2014: Rs. 0.766 million) has been recagnised in the profil and loss sccount (refer note 22).
PREMIUMS DUE BUT UNFPAID Statatory Funds Aggregate
Couveational  Acchdentand  Non-unitised Unlt Linked 2015 2014
Business Heslih Investment Business
Business Linked
Business
(Rupees)
Considered good
Duc from related parties 6,451,655 . - - 6,451,655 10,483,162
Due from others 17,823,528 - - - 17,823,528 15,006,241
24,175,183 - - - 24,275,183 25,489,403
Considered doubtful
Due from others 4,909,771 - - - 4,909,772 -
29,184,955 - - - 29,184,955 25,489,403
Provigion against bed and doubiful debiz {4,909,772) - - - (4,909,712) -
Net premium due but wnpald 14,275,183 - - - 24,275:183 25I439|403

The trade debis amounting to Rs. 0.150 million (2014: Rs, 0.261 million) ave receivable from tho related parties thal arc past due but not impaired.

These are dus between 90 to 180 days and 180 to 365 days, respectively amounting to Rs. 0.064 milfion and Rs. 0.086 million (2014: Rs. 0,250 million
and Rs. 0.011 mitlio). Total amount du¢ from them is Ra. 6.4 miltion (20§4: 10.48 million). The remaining balance of Rs. 6.30 million is for a period
Jess than 90 days (2014: Ra. 1022 million).

Movement in provision of bad end doubtful debts is es follows: s 2014
(Raptes)
Opening balance . .
Charge for the year 4,949,712 -
Clasing balance 4,909,772 .
PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS
Advances and depasiis Statutory Fuods Aggrepate
Shareholders' Conventionsl  Accideat and Non-unitised Unlt Linked 2015 2014
Fonnd Buslnens Heslth Investment Business
Buslness Linked
{Rupees)
Security deposits 14,422,654 690,833 - - - 15,113,487 7,809,899
Advance aguinst Pre-1FO
subscription - note 18.1.1 - - - 50,000,000 - 50,000,008 -
14,422,654 £90,833 P 50,000,000 - 65,113,487 7,800,899

“Thia represent Pre-1PQ subscription advance for participating ix privalely placed term finance certificate of Habib Bank Limited.

Prepoyments Statutory Funds Aggregate
Shareholders’ Convenlional  Accident und  Non-unitised Unit Linked 2015 2014
Fund Business Health Investment Business
Business Linked
(Rupees)
Rentaly 25,551,652 - . - - 15.551,652 21,851,635
Information
techaology 2,343,116 - - - - 1,343,116 4,914,244
Office maintenance 45,940 - . - - 45,940 43,332
Stamp duty - - - - 4,685,777 4,685,777 1,166,530
Fees and gubscription 1,049,350 - - - - 1,049,350 1,050,750
Vehicle and other
insurance 65,233 - - - - 68,233 -
291051_5221 = - - 4.6!5I1'71' 33;44@68 31 1016I491
More mis 2014
FIXED ASSETS {Rupees)
Tangible I 54,385,832 50,L88,283
Intangible sssels 192 16,310,161 8,491,386
—Tigge _SRETO6
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192

1013 1
Cost Rate % Depreciation Written Dawn
At} Additlens  (Diaporsly) Arstdl Asat] For the yenr  {Disposals)  Aswi3t Valueas af 31
January 1015 «  December January 2015 1 L D b
2015 2018 018 °
{Rupess)
Oftice equipments 11,088,181 5,545,429 (1134000 16520210 20% 4282096 2,615,708 (45.990) 6,351,814 9,668,196
Computer and reiated -
squipments 43219821 TARLISY O79,56t) 59,713,620 33.33% 253415 10367368 (276,572) 3593530 14,790,790
Furnlturs and Mxtieres 30,464,918 13,006,498 (998,800) 42,480,616 14.3% 14,050,313 5,515,151 {(5T7.992)  19,007472 13A473,144
Moutor vabicles 12,259,516 291,487 (L1%4,340) 10,366,673 W% 1671210 1026295 M4y 190317 6,463,502
97,033,446 16,725,773 678,100) 120.0%1,119 46,845,163 20545022 {1,694.898) _ 65,695,287 54,385,832
2014
Cost Rate % Dep Wiitten Down
Asn] Additions  (Dispowls)  Asm3l Asmt1  (Forthe year) Disposals Asmi3f Valueasst3l
January 2014 Decemnber January 2014 December December
{Rupees)
Office equipments 6,245,297 5229938 {(3872.041) 11,088,181 20M 324E,605 1404199 {370,708y  4.282,09 6,806,085
Computet and related
equiptmenis 30,027,601 14,879,787 (1L696567) 43210821 3133% 13443402 8960337  (1,562.205) 25,841,534 17,369,287
Furnitors and fixtures 25,736,779 5.176,8719 (468,740) 30464913  143% 10,291,537 4015111 {256.335) 14050113 16,414,605
Muotor vehicles 15,890,499 4815600 (5,436573) 12,265,515 0% 6,633,836 2,036,949  (5,999,565) 2671220 9,598,306
771,920,176 102,191 (10,988,921 57,033,446 18617380 16416.596 (8,1 33.B13) 46845163 30,188,283
The deprecistion charge for the yoar tag been Mliocated as follows: Mate 2035 014
(Rupees)
D i ol g to Statutary Funds (sdministrative expensc} Fiid 646,737 507,585
Dcpteciltlonupcnx mhlingwsmmryﬁlﬂs 16,160,391 14,029,239
Deprecision expense relating to Branch overheads (surory funds) 2t 3,738 1,819,772
_ansesan _Tedlesss,
Emg&h RESRLE
s .
Cost Rate % Amertisation Writies Doawn
Arntl Additlons  {Disposals} As at 31 Asat1 Fortheyesr {Dhsposals)  Asst3  Valeersat3l
JIntusry 2015 December Jusuary 2018 D b Decemb
01s 0I5 W13
{Rupees)
Cotnpules softwares 36,761,854 137,14 - 49983468 20% 8,276,468 5378939 - 33,685407 16,330,151
36,767,854 13217714 - 49,985,563 18,176,468 78,939 - 33, 071633161
2014
Cont Rato % Amertisation Written Dovm
Anal] Additions  (Disposals} Asat3} Asal i For the year  (Disposals) Asa ¥l Walue Az at 31
Jasary 2014 December Jaruary 2014 December December
2014 2014 2014
{Rupees)
Computer softwarss 36,086,793 681,061 - 36,767.954 2% 10581,123 7,295,343 - 218,276,468 A9 I386
36,086,793 681,061 - 36,767,854 20,981,123 1,295,343 - 28276463 2491 386
1921 The amortistion charge for the year has been aflocsted as follows: Note 1018 2014
(Rupeest
Amwtnhm BLpanEs mt zdmn; 1o Stanaory Funds (administrative expense) 20 131962 562,855
Amortl f g to Statutory Funds 5,140,577 6,132.49%0
5,378,939 1293345

‘Tangihle assetsy

PN
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Disposals / write-off of fixed assets

Disposal of fixed assets during the year having fiet book vatue of Rs. 50,000 and above are as follows:

Cost Accumulated  Net book Sale Gain / (Loss) Maode of
depreclation value proceeds on disposal  disposal
{Rupees}
Motor Vchicle - HONDA
CIVIC (I-VTEC) 2,153,840 (753,844) 1,392,996 1,585,724 185,728 Company
policy
Computer equipments - 11,300 (19,806) 51,494 65,596 14,102 Insurance
Laptop claim
Compuler equipments - 71,300 (15,806) 51,494 65,596 14,102 Insurance
Laplop claim
2,296,440 (793,456} 1,502,984 1,716,916 213,932

Disposal of fixed assets during the year having net book value not exceeding Rs. 50,000 each are as follows:

Cost Accumulated  Net book Sale Gain / (Loss) Made of
depreciation value proceeds  ondisposal  disposal
(Rupecs)
Compulter equipments 236,960 (236,960) . 36,180 36,180 Company
policy
Fumilure and fixlures 990,808 (577,992) 412,808 114,163 (298,645) Negotiation
Office and other 113,400 {45,990) 67,410 20,844 (46,566) Negotiation
equiments
Motor vehicles 40,500 (40,500) - 19,000 19,080 Negotiation
1,381,660 {901,442) 480,218 190,187 (290,031)
Grand Total 3,678,100 (1,694,898) 1,983,202 1,907,103 {76,099)

lorm—a,

Particulars of
buyers

Mr, Noman
Noor

{Employec)

Adamjee
Insurance
Company
Limited -
rclated party

Adamjee
Insurance
Company
Limited -
related party

Particulars of
buyers

Employees of
the Company

Various parties

Varigus parties

Mr. Muhammad
Hanif
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201

21

21.

EXPENSES NOT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
STATUTORY FUNDS

Salaries allowance and other beselits
Information technotogy
Rent

Marketing

Advertisement and publicity
Car fue] and maintenance
Utilities :

Fee and subseription
Deprcciation

Amottisation

Printing and stationery
Postage and courier

Office mainlenance
Auditor's remuneration
Legal and professional
Travelling

Enterfainment

Insurance

Bank charges

Shared services cost relating to investments
Workers Welfare Fund
Training and development
Donations / Zakat
Miscellangous

Note

9.1
19.2.1

26.1

2015 2014
{(Rupees)
14,344,316 11,906,287
957,712 509,334
1,259,792 1,165,924
168,969 {185,541)
26,852 20,215
198,270 301,347
478,067 342,752
144,367 211,065
646,737 507,585
237,962 562,855
260,671 158,277
79,323 98,340
1,063,055 326,103
188,512 140,064
2,499,191 751,919
461,849 117,954
124,258 78,939
93,536 88,528
27,482 54,172
- 300,000
84,892 -
6,527 300
- 854,291
29,231 24,205
DS __J8IA

The above expenscs represent allocation in accordance with the advice of the appointed actuary as approved by the Board of

Directors.

BRANCH OVERHEADS
Override and incentives

Administrative expenses
Salaries, allowances and other bencefits
Information technology

Rent

Marketing

Advertisement and publicity
Car fuel and maintenance
Utilities

Depreciation

Printing and stationery

Office maintenance

Travelling

Enterlainment

Insurance

Bank charges

Training and development
Legal and professional charges
Postage and courier
Miscellaneous

CURRENT TAXATION

Current:

- for the year

- for prior year
Deferred

e

19.1.1

16.1

11,613,142 4,437,589
25,658,667 17,185,357
658,490 848,745
9,483,244 4,769,255
7,269,709 3,081,182
159,650 1,845,797
1,711,231 1,423,006
3,006,673 1,827,215
3,737,894 1,879,772
~ 837,338 664,249
3,905,743 1,760,609
650,576 520,736
792,608 245,536
139,215 89,229
277,034 3,395
1,839,671 2,704,198
40,373 94,907
102,688 37,086
313,851 167,863
60,584,655 39,148,137
72,197,797 43,585,726
1,117,928 2,913,278
275,743 -
1,894,573 766,079
3288244 3679357
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22.1.1

U,

24.1

5.

26.

6.1

Relationship belween Lax expense and sccounting profit

Profit befarc taxation

Tax al applicable rate of 32% (014: 33%)

Tax effoct on unrcalised appreciation in the valuc of quoted securitics

Tax cilisct on cupitad gain cxempled
Prior yeur tan churge

Tax cfTect of income charged at differcnt tax rate

Others
Tax charge fur the year

Tax Conlingencics

2014

1015
{Rupees)
4!1591696 1 81585!223
1,331,103 6,166,124
(72,923) (68,768)
- (1,032,388)
275,743 -
1,754,321 {507,092)
. (R78,519)
3244244 Jl(ﬁ"?l\'il 7

Rewum of income has been filed for the tax year 2015, which is deemed 1o be asscssed unless sclected for audit o otherwise by the taxation
authoritics. Asscssments of the Company hes been finalised up to 1ax year 2014.

For tax ycars 201 1. 2012 and 2013, 1ax amhoritics have issucd orders under scc
tax demand of Rs. 2.63 million, Rs. 3.04 miltion and Rs. 2.1¢ miltion respective
sections 4(4) of the WWF Ordinance, 1971 and disallowance of U
challans. The Company has fiicd an appeal against Lhese orders wi

C Enband B

ax credils of 1ax paid/deduc

Re - Appeals (CIR(A)). However, the managenichit consi
sppeals before the appellate authoritics and the menagement is confident that the outcome of the appeals

provision in addition to the recorded amount has boen made in these financial statements against the aforcsaid tax demand.

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Prafit aftcr tax for the year

Woeighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at ycar end

Eamnings per share - hasic and dilutcd

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTLVES

The aggregatc amount charged in the financis] statcments for

are as follows:

Managerial remuncration
House rent allowance
Utilitics

Mcdical cxpenscs
Others

Mumber of persons

This is inclusive of the running cost of Company maintained car and furnished accommodation. In addi
of Company maintaincd cats in accordance with Company palicy.

tion 221 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ihe Oydinance) raising
ty for thesc years primarily on the ground of charging WWF under
wed due Lo the allcdged non verification of tax

hich is pending before the Appetlate Tribunal Intend Revenue (ATIR) and the
ders that the Company has cnough grounds for success in
would be in their favour. Hence, no

2015 2014
{Rupees)
171,451 15,005,866
93,549,400 93!549I400
0.01 0.16
—

remuncration, including all benefits to the Chicf Exceutive and exccutives of the Company

W18 2014
Note Chlefl Executives Chicf Exccutive Excoutives
Executive
(Rupces)
57,244,069 46,605,107 44,490,104 35,813,390
5,490,375 16,303,013 4,951,320 14,326,156
675,065 4,075,754 571,592 3.581,539
- 1,552,500 - 1,423,750
24.1 1,772,400 10,942,283 2,500,143 8,162,145
65,181,909 9,478,657 52!513i159 63I303|930
1 A7 ] 30

tion, certain cxceutives are provided with frec use

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2015 2014
Pcrmancat cmployees 195 163
Contraciual cmployees 1 9
Outsourced cmployees i8 11
214 I8
2015 2014
AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 199 154
2015 2014
AUDITORS' REMUNERATION {Rupees)
Audit fees 1,160,000 1,000,000
Focs for other centification 265,000 140,000
Qut of pocket expenscs 195,747 260,643

_LSRJAT L3NS,

The euditors’ remuneration for the yeor has been allocaled os follows:

Not celating to statutory fund 20 198,512 - 140,064
Relating to statutory fund 1,432,235 1,260,579
—_igmega LA006D

Ko
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28.

18.1

28.1.2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

At Malr value

Avallable for Held to Loans and Agprepate
through profit or sale matarity recelvahles 2015 2014
loas
Flnanclal Asscls — {Rupecs)
Cash and bank deposits
Cash and others - - - 45472 45,472 72,608
Current and other accounts - . - 979,749,703 979,749,709 572,588,014
Deposits maturing within 12 months - - - 360,000,000 360,000,000 -
Unsecure loans Lo cmployees - - - 3,271,098 3,271,098 1,892,118
Loans secured agalnat Life
Insurance Pollicies - - - 10,346,647 10,346,647 3,522,901
Investments
Government sccuritics 11,314,803,830 373,047,313 - - 11,687,851,143 6,781,079,717
Onher fixed income scouritics 122,170,643 - - - 122,170,643 119,191,467
Listed equity sccuritics and
units of mutual funds 1,76_6@61.608 105,987,741 - - 1,872,852.349 1,199,443 181 !
13,203,839,081 479,035,054 - - 13,682,874,135 8,099,714,365
Cutrent assels - olhers )
Premium duc bul unpaid - - - 14,275,183 24,275,183 25,489,403
Accrued income on investments - - - 283,170,348 183,170,348 330,869,454
Amounts due from rcinsurer - - - 40,045,458 40,045,458 3,650,714
Advances and deposits - - - 64,713,487 £4,313,487 7,009,899
Other reccivable - - - 124,067 124,067 1,189,712
Dividend reccivable - - - 465,778 465,778 48,039
- - - 412,394,321 412,394,321 368,257,221
LIS 479035034 L ipesauaT 1SRN 0046047221,
2015 2014
Financial liabilities st amortised cost {Rupees)
Quistanding claims 198,180,934 113,498,620
Amounts duc Lo rcinserers 13,800,150 19,218,922
Amounts duc to agenis 238,641,639 204,764,458
Accrued cxpenscs 5,339,963 3,961,832
Other creditors and aceruals 58,425,563 33,875,153
Suamses  VISIISORS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND FOLICIES

The Board of Dircetors of the Company has overall mspoﬁsibilily for the establishment and oversight o

Board of Directors is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policics.

f the Company's risk management framowork. The

The Company's activitics cxposc it 1o & varicty of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's averall risk managemcnt

program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and socks 1o minimise potential adversc cffeets on

Market risk

the Company's financial perfommance,

Market risk is the risk that the valuc of the Gnancial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates ot the market price of scourilics

due 10 a change in credit rating of the issuer of the instrumest, change in markel sentiments,

liquidity in the markct.

The Company manages market risk by monitoring cxposurc on marketoble securitics by following the internal risk management po.

laid down by the Sccuritics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,

Market risk comprises of threc types of risk: forcign cumency risk, intorost rate risk and price risk.

Farcign currency rlsk

speculative activitics, supply and demand of securities and

licics and rcgulations

Farcign Currency tisk is the risk that the fuir vatuc or futurc cash flows of o financial instrumcnt will fluctuate because of changes in forcign exchange
vates. The Company, at present is nat cxposed Lo any significant foroign currency risk as its operations arc geographically restricted to Pakistan and its

transactions arc mainly carricd out in Pakisiani Rupecs.

Interest rate risk exposure

The Company invests in govemment sceuritics, other fixcd income sccurilies and term deposits and de
pacc risk. Intcrest ratc sk to the Company is the risk of changes in markel intcrest rates reducing the ov

mand depasit with banks that arc subjoct (o interest
crall return ou its iniorest bearing sceuritics. The

Company limits intercst rate risk by monitaring the changes in interest rates effecting jts bank balances and investments,

ki
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Sensitivity analysiy
{a) Scnsitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
Presently, the Company holds GoP Ijarah Sukuk and Term Finance Certificates exposing it to cash fuw interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis

points increase/decrease in interest yield on 31 December 2015 with all ather variables held constan, the net assets of the statutory funds of the
Company and net income of the statutory funds for the year would have been higherflower by Rs. 0.278 million (2014: Rs. 1.34 million).

None of the financial instruments of the shareholder's fund are exposed 1o variable interest rate risk.

(b} Sensitivity analysls for fixed rate Instruments w015 2014
(Rupecs)

Shareholder's Fund

Bank balances 22,719,665 10,208,328

Investment in Government Securities (PIBs + T-bills) 164,398,016 . 234,754,195

Unsecured loans to employees 3,271,098 1,892,118
150,388,779 246,854,641

Starutory Funds

Bank balances 939,159,297 547,671,599

Deposits maturing within 12 months i 360,000,000 -

Investment in Government Securities (P1Bs + T-bills) 11,523,453,127 6,546,325,522

Loans secured against Life Insurance Policies 10,346,647 3,522,901

12,833,159,07¢ 7,007,320.022

Above balances also includes available for sale investments of Rs. 373.047 million (2014: Rs. 514.887 million). However, interest rate
increase would not have had an effect on the sharcholders fund or the stamtory funds as the carrying values of the respective available
for sale investments are carried at lower of cost or market value in accordance with the requirement of the SEC Insurance Rules, 2002,
Hewever, if the interest rate had decreased, it could have effected both the carrying value and the net income of the shareholders fund
and statutory funds. However, since the market value of the investments are much higher than their carying velues the impact of 2
change of 20{ basis points would not have had & material effect on the respecitve statutery fiznds and the shareholders fund,

In case of a chenge of 100 basis points in financial intnuments other than the above mentioned svailable for sale investments, with all
other varizbles held constant, the value of fixed mte financial instruments in shareholder's find would been effected by Rs. 0.26 miltion
(2014: Rs. 0.12 million) and in statutory funds by Rs. 88.08 miltion (2014: Rs. 149.52 million).

28.1.3 Price Risk

232

The Company’s listed securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about the foture value of investrnent securities. The
Corpany limits market risk by maintaining a diversificd portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in equity, money market fund and
term finance certificates {TFCs). In addition, the Company actively monitors the key factors that affect stock, money market and TFCs market. In the
equity portfolio, the top three sectors by exposure are Oil and Gas, Banks and Mutual Funds.

In case of 5% increase in market prices of equity securities classified as:

a)  at fair value through profit or loss , the post tax profit would increase by Rs. 88 million {2014: Rs. 2.717 million );
b) available for sale , the post tax profits would increase by Rs. 0.334 million (2014: Nil)

In case of 5% decrease in market prices of equity securities classified as: '

a)  at fair value through profit or loss, the post tax profit would decrease by Rs. 88 million (2014: Rs. 2717 million),

b) available for sale, the net assets of the Company would decrease by Rs. 3.518 million (2014: Rs. 0.8538 million). The value of net assets of the
Company will only decrease if the fall in prices is other than temporary in accordance with the Yocal regulatory requirements apphicable on
insurance companies in Pakistan.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other
party to Incur a financial loss. '

Concentration of credit risk arises when 2 number of counterparties have similar types of business activitics, As a result, any change in economic,
political or other conditions would affcct their ability to mezt contractual obligations in a similer manner.

Major eredit risk arises in credit exposure to group life policyholders on account of premiums due but unpeid and on bank balances. The
management monitors exposure to credit risk through regular review of credit exposure and assc_ssing credit worthiness of counter parties.

Due to the Company’s strong standing business relationships with its counterparties and after giving due consideration to their sound financial
standing, management does not expect non—performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company.

Yo
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« 2821 Creditrisk

Details of the maximumm exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was as follows:

Carrying values of financial assets olher than, ‘premium due but unpaid’, which are neither past due nor impaired.

Financial Assets

Cash and bank deposits

Current and other accounts

Deposits maturing within 12 months

Unsecured loans to empioyees

Loans secured against Life
Insurance Policies

Investments
Other fixed income securities
Units of open ended mutual funds

Current assets - others
Accrued income on investments
Amount due from reinsurer
Advances and deposils

Other receivables

Dividend receivables

An age analysis of the camrying value of premiums, 'due but unpaid’,
that are past due but not impaired are as under:

Up to 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 50 days
91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365

2015 2014
{Rupees)
979,749,709 572,588,014
360,000,000 i
3,271,098 1,892,118
10,346,647 3,522,901
122,170,643 119,191,467
1,784,465,806 1,121,634,462
8,662,561 5,983,214
40,045,458 3,650,714
64,313,487 7,009,899
124,067 1,189,712
465,778 48,039
3,373,615,254 1.836,710,540
6,323,510 31,266,495
1,398,558 454,924
10,825,482 1,064,370
564,612 1,625,043
4,964,484 1,078,571
198,537 .
74,275,183 25,489,403
3,307,890,437 1,.862,199,943

Difference between the above total balance and total balance of financial assets reported in note 27 is due to the
fact that the investment in Government Securities amounting to Rs. 11,962 million (2014: Rs. 7,105 miilion),
investment in listed equity securities amounting to Rs. 88.387 million (2014: Rs. 77.809 million) and cash in hand
amounting to Rs. 0.045 million {2014: Rs. 0.073 million) are not exposed to credit risk.

An age analysis of the carrying value of premiums due but unpaid that are past due and impaired are as under:

91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365
Provided balance

595,457

3,954,054

360,261

4,909,772

Due to the nature of its financial assets, the Company believes it is not exposed to any major goncentrslion of credit risk.

bt




= 28.2.2 Concentration of credit risk

283

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties have a similar type of business activities. As a
resull any change in economic, political or other conditions would affect their ability to meei contractual obligations
in a similar manner. The Company manages concentration of credit risk through diversification of activities amongst
individuals, groups and industry segments.

2015 2014
Carrying value Y% Carmrying value %
(Rupees) - (Rupees) -----eommv
Banks and financial institutions 1,529,942,039 45,03% 714,516,319 3837
Mutual funds 1,784,465,806 52.52% 1,122,713,262 60.29%
Reinsurance company 40,045,458 1.18% 3,650,714 0.20%
Policy holders 10,346,647 0.30% 3,522,901 0.19%
Employees 3,984,071 0.12% 2,347,362 0.13%
Sugar and allied industry 3,311,472 0.10% 1,126,007 0.06%
Textile industry 5,752,371 0.17% 832,792 0.05%
Electricity 266,556 0.01% 183,347 0.01%
Foods and beverages 1,343,666 0.04% 555,307 0.03%
Govemment agency 400,000 0.01% 400,000 0.02%
Insurance company 178,560 0.01% 264,315 0.01%
Leasing company 2,054,052 0.06% - -
Individuals 4,205,875 0.12% - -
Others 11,593,864 034% 12,037,617 0.65%
3,397.890,437 100% 1,862,199.943 100%
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to seitle its obligations in
full as they fafl due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

2015
Total Not later than 1 later than 1
month and not later than
months
{(Rupees)
Outstanding claims 198,180,934 198,180,934 -
Amounts due to reinsurers 33,800,150 - 33,800,150
Amounts due to agents 238,641,639 238,641,639 -
Accrued expenses 5,339,963 5,339,963 -
Other creditors and accruals 58,425,863 58,425,363 -
534&88,549 500,588,399 33,800,150
2014
Total Not later than ) later than | month
month and not later than
3
months
{Rupees)
Outstanding claims 113,498,620 113,498,620 -
Amounts due to reinsurers 19,218,922 - 19,218,922
Amounts due to agents 204,764,458 204,764,458 -
Accrued expenses i 3,961,832 3,961,832 -
Other creditors and accruals 33,875,153 33,875,153 -
375.318,985 356,100,063 19,218,922
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29.1

29.1.1

INSURANCE RISK AND MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK
Convenllonal business

Individual Life

The visk underwritien is mainly death and sometimes disability. The risk of death and disability will vary in degrez by age, gender, occupation, income group
and geographical location of the assured person. The Company's exposure Lo poor risks may lead to unexpectedly high severity and frequency in claims’
experience. This can be a result of anti-selection, fraudulent claims, a catastrophe or poor persistency. The Compuny may also face the risk of poor investmentl
return, inflation of busincss expenses and liquidity issites on amount invesied in the fund. The Company faces the risk of under-pricing particularly due to the

fact that majotity of these contracts are long term. Additionally, the risk of poor persistency may result in the Coapany being unable 1o recover expenses
incuned at policy acquisition.

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting, reinsurance, claims handling policy and other related controls. The Company has » well defined
medica] underwriting policy and avoids selling policies 1o high risk individuals. This puls » check on anti-selection. The need for profit testing is reviewed on
an annua! basis to ensure reasonablencss of premiums charped, Reinsurance contracts have been purchased by the Company Lo limit the maximum exposure on
any one insured person. The Company is developing and inlends o eventually have a good spread of business thrughout the country thereby ersuring
diversification of geopraphical risks, To avoid poor persistency the Company applies quality controls on the stanéard of service provided to policyholders and
has placed checks to control mis-sclling and to track improvements in the siandard of scrvice provided to palicyhaiders, For this, o regular monitoring of
lapsation rates is conducied. On the claims handling side, the Company has procedures in place to ensure that pmment of any fraudulent claims is avoided. For
this, Claims Committee with variable materiality limits review all claims for verification and specific and dewited investigation of all apparently doubiful
claims {particulacly of high amounts) is conducted. Further, all payments on account of clsims are made after necessary approval of the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. The Company maintaing sdequate liquidity in its fund 1o cater for a potentially sudden and high cash requirement,

a) Frequeacy and severity of claims

The Company measures concentration ol risk in terms of cxposurc by geographical area. Concentration of risk i3 not currently n factor of concern a3 the
business is developing and aims to achleve a spread of risks across various parts of the country.

There is some concentration by sum assured amounis which may “ave an impact on the severity of benefit payments on a portfolio basis.

The table below presents the concentration of assured benefits across five bands of assured benefits per indivifual life assured. The benefit assured figures
are shown gross and net of the reinsurance contracts described above,

The smaunts presented are showing total exposure of the Company including exposure in respect of riders stoched to the main policies.

Benefits assured per life Sum assured at the end s£2015
‘Total benefits assured

Rupees Before velosurance After reinsurance

{Rupees) Percentage {Rupees}) Percentage
0-200,060 3,032,736 2.68% 909,821 4.31%
200,000 - 400,000 10,168,536 8.98% 1,050,561 14.49%
400,001 - 800,000 12,075,111 10.66% 3,621,513 17.20%
800,001 - 1,000,000 1,893,330 1.67% 567,999 2.70%
More than 1,000,000 86,014,266 76.00% 12,504,000 6128%
Total 1 ISII 90;79 21 !049£94
Benefits assured per lfe Sum assured al the end of 2014

Total benefits 4

Rupees Before reinsurance After rcinsurance

{Rupees) Percentage (Rupecs) Percentage -
0-200,000 1,867,974 1.43% 560,392 2.06%
200,000 - 400,000 2,083 377 1.60% 623,013 2.2%%
400,001 - 800,000 4,697,228 3.60% 1,409,168 5.17%
£00,001 - 1,000,000 4,802,186 3.69% 1,440,656 5.28%
More than 1,000,000 116,856,860 89.68% 23,238,801 85.20%
Total 130,307,625 27,274,030

b) Seurtes of uncertainty In the estimation of foture benefit payments and premiam recelpts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premivm receipts for long-term conventional asswance contracts arises from the
unpredictability of long-termn changes in overall levels of mortality and morbidity incidence rates.

The Company assumes the cxpected mortality 1o vary between 80% and 120% of SLKC {2001-05) since the comrent expericnce for this line of business is not
credible. Morbidity incidence mtes are taken as a percentage of reinsurer’s fisk premium rate. )

¢} Process used to declde on assumptions

For long-term conventionsl assurance contracts, long-term assumptions are made at the inception of the contract, Keeping the statutory minimum rescrving
basis in view, the Company determines assumptions on future mortality, morbidity, persistency, sdmimistrative expenses and investment retuns. At regular
intervals, profit testlng is conducted on main policies. Assumptions wsed for profit testing of the main policies arc a5 follows:
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- The expected mortality is assumed to vary between 80% and 120% of SLIC (2001-05) since the current Experience for this line of business is not credible,

- Morbidity incidencs rates for morbidity s taken as # perceningy ol reinsurer’s fisk premiam rate.

- Persi; y: The Company iscs o periodic analysis on recent and histaric exparience and persistency is ealculated by applying statisticol methods.
Persisiency rates vary by prodocts end moce imp ',thenlcadislrihmionchmmLAndlowmislhmMeI'wanylrendlnlhedﬂllnlrdnnbml
estimate of fulure persistency mies for ench sales distribution channel.

- Expense lovels and inflatlon: As the business Ls new, estimoies from business projections hove been used. Once esiablished, & peciodic study will be
conducied oa the Company’s current business expenses and fulure projections 1o calculate par policy expertses. Expense inflation is essumed in line with
assumed investment rtum

+ Investment retums: The investment returns are based on the historic performance of the assets and ossel types underlying the fund,
d) Changes in assumplions

There have been no changes in assumplions since the fast valuation carricd o1 3 yoar 8go.

¢) Sensitivity saalysis

Afer reinsurance, the overall liability for individunl Jife conventional busincss stends ot less than 1% of the iotzl policyhalder liability held in respect of
individual life business, Doe 1o ils immateriality, sensitivity analysis has noi heen conducicd. .

Group Life

“The main risk written by the Company §5 mozrtality, The Company may be eapesed o the risk of unexpecied claim severity o frequency. This can be a result of
writing business with higher than expected monallty (such a3 minlng or other hazardous fndusiries), writing high cover nmounts without adequate
underviting, difficutty of verification of cialms, fraudulent claims or a cotastrophe. The Company also faces risk such s that of under-pricing 1o acquire
business in a competitive environment and of non-rocaipt of premiun in duc tlme. There also exists a potenial risk of nxset Hability 1erm maismaich due to
fiabilives being very short ierm in nature.

‘The Company marnages these risks through underwriling, reinsurance, eflective claims handling and other related controls. The Company has 2 well defined
medical under-writing policy end avoids writing busincss for groups with overly hazardous expasuse., Pricing fs done in ine with the aclual experience of Lhe
Company. The preminm charged tokes into sccount the aciual experience of the client and the nature of mortality exposure the group Faces. The Manapement
undenekes to writc business in ine with the limits set by the appointed octusty, cspecially for Iarge groups having @ group assurance policy with annuc!
premium of Rs 2 miltion or above in accordance with the requirements of Circular 1] o 2613 dated June 14, 2013, The Company nlso maintalns &
Management {nformation System (MIS) to track the sdegquacy of the premium charged. Reinsurance contracts have been purchased by the Company to limit
the maximut exposure 10 any one life. At the seme time, due caution is opplied in writing business in areas with a high probability of toorism. The Company
ensures wriling business with good geographical spread and iries 10 maintain o cantrolled exposure to largs groups which generally have poor experience.
Writing business of known hazardous groups is also avoided. On the claims handiing side, tha Compeny csures thal payment of any fraudulent claims is
avoided For this, Claims Committee with varisble msterinlity limits review all cluims for vesification and specific and detailed investigation of all appacently
doubdful claims {paniculnrly of kigh amounts) is conducted. Strict monitoring is in placc o te Board of Dircclors level in order 16 keep the oulatanding
balances of premium o1 & minimum, cspecially the anes thal arc dus for wore than 90 days. The bulk of the assets held apainst liabilitics of this line of business
are cash o money market with shoe durations nind high liquidity, thus mitigniing the risk of asset vlue deleriorstion mnd liability mismatch.

n) Frequency and severity of claims

The Company messurts corcepration of risk in tenmns of expesure by peographical area. Conceniration ol risk arising from geographical Area is not a factor
of concam as the Compuaay aims 1o ochicve o spread of risks across various pans of the country.

The follewing table prescats the concentmiion of nssered benefits neroxs lve bands of assured benefits per individuad life assured. The benelit nssured
figures oee shown gross and et of the reinsurance contcacls described above.

The ampunts presenicd are showing totat exposure of the company including cxpasure in respect of riders attached 10 1he main policies,

Benefits assured per life Sum assarcd at the end of 2013
TVotal benefits assured

Rupees Before reingurance Aflter reinsurance

Rupecs Perceninge Rupees Perceninge
0-200,600 716,160 0.00% 776,160 LO0%
200,000 - 400,000 300,000 0.00% 300,000 0.00%
400,001 - 00,000 8,150,000 0.00% 1,475,000 0.00%
300,044 - 1,000,000 43,200,000 0.02% 48,300,000 0.04%
Moie than 1,000,000 259490,871,7403 99.98% 132.502,116,030 99.96%
ol DRI E X SATTR
Benclis assured per life ) Sum assured ni the end of 2014

Tota! benclits assured

Rupees Defore reinsuiance Afler miinsurance

Rupees Porcentage Rupees Percenlage
0-200,000 79,103,104 0.03% 79,103,104 0.06%
200,000 - 400,000 30,900,000 1o1% 30,900,000 0.02%
ADDOC - 800 000 750,000 0.00% 225,000 0.00%
300,004 - 1,000,000 - 0.00% - 0.00%
Moic Lthan 1,000,000 313,050,766,146 99.96% 140372003374 99.92%
Tolal 313,161,519 250 140.482,23] 478
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b) Sources of uncertainty i the estimation of future benefit payments and premiom receipts

Other than conducting o llabillty adequocy for Unexplred Risk Rescrves (URR). these is no need to estimnte mortalily for future years because of the shon
duration of 1he contracis.

£} Process used to decide on asswmptions

The business is 100 new Tor any meoningful investigotion inte the group's past experience, However, Indusiry experience, the insured group's own past

;xa::ticnce and reinsurer risk ratas are used to determine the expected level of risk in relation to the SLIC (2001.05) Individual Life Ditimate Mortality
(8

) Chunges in asyamptions

There have been no changes in assumptons vince the last voluation carried oul 2 year ago.
£} Sensitivity analysis

Afer reingurnace, tha not unenrned premluim resorve for this business sunds at less than | % of tha votal palicyholder Sinbility. This linbility will be o tve
Company’s books for undor o yenr, Due (o its immaeriality, a senskivity analysiz has not been conducted,

Non unltised Invesiment Linked Busiaess

The risk underwrilien is mainly denth and somelimes disability. The risk of death and disability will vary in degres by oge, gender, ottupation, income group
and geogmphical location of tha nssured person. The Company's exposure to poor tisks may kead 1o unexpeciedly high severity and frequency in claims'
experience. This can be a result of anii-selection, feaudulent claims, a catastrophe or poor persistency. The Campany may ajso face the risk of inflation of
business expenses and liquidity issues on amount invesied in the find. The Company faces the risk of under-pricing particularly du to the fact that these
controcts ore long tenn. Additionally, Ihe sisk of poor persisiency may result in the Company boing uneble to f d at policy acquisiion.

Kp

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting, reinsurance, claims handling policy and other relmed controls, The Company bas 2 well defined
medical underwriting policy and avolds selling policies o high risk individus!s. Thiz pets a check on anti-selection. The need for profit testing ix reviewed on
an snual basis 1o ensure reasonableness of premiums chargad. Reinsurance contmcts have been purchased by the Company o limit the meximum exposure on
any one inaured person. The Company is developing and intends (o eventually have o good spresd of business throughout the couniry thereby ensuring
diversification of geographical risks. To avold poor persisicncy the Company applies quality controls on the stondard of service provided to policyholders end
has placed checks 1o control mis-sclling and to trck improvements in the siandard of scrvice provided w pallcyholders. For this, & regular monitoring of
lapsotion rates is conduciod. On the clnims handling side, the Company has procedures (n place 10 ensure that peymend of any faudulent clsims is avoided, For
this. Claims Committee with variable materiality limits review all claims for verification and specific and dotoiled investigation of all appareatly doubilul
claims {particulurly of high amounts) is conducted, The Company maininins adequote liquidity in its fond to cater for a potentially sudden and high coash
requicement. Funther all payments on account of clnims ore made olier necessacy approvat of ihis Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Company
reserves the ripght 1a review the charges deductible unider (he contracts, thus limiting the risk ol under pricing.

#} Frequency and scverity of elaims

The Campany measures concentration of risk by geapeaphicsd aren. Concentrution of risk is nol curvently a faclor of concemm as the busingss is developing
and aims to pehivve o spread of risks across various parts of the country.

There is some concentration by sum assured amounts which may have an impact on the severity of benefit payments on a portfolio basis,

The Company charpes for mortality risk on a monthly basis for il insurance contracts. It has the right 1o ahier these charges based on its mortality
experience and hence minimises ils exposure 1o mortality risk, Dalays in implementing increnses in charges and market or regulatory restruints over the
extent of the increases may hinder its mitigming elfect. The Company manuges these risks through its undorwriting stratogy and reinsuronce amangements,

The table below presents the concettration of assured benelits across five banids of nssured benefils per individual life wysured. The benelil assured figures
are shown gross and net of the reinsurence contracty described obove, The smounts presenicd are showing (otal exposure of the Company including
expastite in respect of riders altached 10 the moin policies.

Benciils assared per life Sum sssured ot the end of 2015
Total benefits xasvred

Rupees Belore seinsuranee After reinsurnnee

(Rupees) Perceniage {Rupees) Percentage
0200, 00 Ti.901 583 m11% 218,670,505 11.64%
200,000 - 400,000 1.186,305327 16.49% 356,551,598 18.98%
400,001 - 200,000 1,001,041 465 1. 718% 600,312.440 31.96%
200,004 . 1 000,008 1, 486,272,288 20.61% 445,881,686 13 74%
Moxre than 1,000,000 1%239.121 25.05°% 257,100,000 13.68%
Towl 7&10&& 1 1 9
Benefits assured per lile Sum assured ot the end ol 2014

Total benelits assured

Rupecs Belote reinsurance Alter reinsurance

{Rupecs) Percenings {Rupees} Percentage
0-200,000 . 99,758 457 2.710% 29,926,637 1.49%
200,000 - 400,000 141,529.342 173% 47458802 2.50%
400,001 - 200,000 314,944,945 12,56% 244,483,434 14.65%
$00.001 . | 000,000 237,604,332 4.78% 56,281 44% 5.52%
Mo than 1,000,000 5056, 137 612 T1.23% 1,257,048.837 15.84%
Tonal —_SARSTINE e WEGRISOTO
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b} Sources of uncertalnty in the estimation of future beneflt pay and premium receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of fulure benefit paymienis and premium receipts for long-ienm Non-unitised Investment Linked assurance conteacts arises

from the unpredictability of long-term changes in averall levels of mortality and morbidity of the insured papulation and variability in policyhalders'
behaviour.

Factors impacting future beneflt payments and premlum receipts are as Follows:

Mortality: The Company assumes the expected mortality to vary between 80% ond 120% of SLIC (2001-04) since the current experience for this line of
buginess is aot credible.

Morbidity: Incidence maies for morbidity are taken as a proportion of reinsurer's risk rates.

« Persi y: The C y exerciscs a periodic analysis on recent and historic expericnce and persistency js caleulated by applying statistical methods,
Pmlstcncy rates vary by products and more importanily the sales distribution channel. An allowance is then made for any trend in the data to arrive ot best
estimate af future persistency rates for each sales disiribution channel.

¢} Process used to declde on assumptions
For long-tertn Non-unitised Investment Linked assurance controcts, mumpuons arc made in two stages. At inceplien of the contract, the Company
delen'nmes assumptions on future mortality, morbidity, perzistency, adminisirative exp and in t retums. At regular inlecvals, profit testing is
d 1 on main polick

Assumptions used for profit testing of tha main policies are as follows:

Mortalily: The expected mortality is assumed to vary between 80% and 120% of SLIC (2001-05) since the cument experience for this line of business is not
credible.

Marbidity: Incidence rates for morbidity are taken as a proportion of reinsurar’s risk rates,

« Persi y: The Company iscs g periodic analysis on recent and historie experience and persistency is calculated by applying statistical methods.
Persistency rates vary by products and more importamly the sales distribution channel, An allowance is then made for any trend in the data 10 arrive at best
estimaie of future persistency rates for ench sales distribution charnel.

Expense levels and inflation: As the business is new, estimates fram business projections have been used. Once csiablished, & perivdic study will be

conducted on the Company's current business expenses and future projections to calculate per policy expenses, Expense inflation is assumed in line with
assumed investment return.

= Investeent returns: The investment returns are based on the historic performance of different types of sssets underfying the fund.
d) Changes In assumptions
There have been no changes in assumplions since the last valuation carried out a year ago.

€} Sensitlvity analysis

Periodic sensitivity analyses of the Corm:any's ln-fur:: business determine whether any reserve needs 1o be created or product prices for new business need
to be revised in light of changing or p hanges in experience from that expected when pricing the cxisting book of business, The curment nature,
volume and age of in-force business does nox require 2 detailed sensitivity analysis at this stage.

Unit Linked Business

The risk underwritten is mainty death and sometimes disability and/or critical illness, The risk of death and disability will vary from region to region. The
Company may get exposed to poor risks duc to unexpected experience in terms of claim severity or frequency, This can be a result of anti-sefection, fraudutent
chims, a causuophe of poor persistency. The Company may also face the risk of poor investrwent retum, Inflation of business cxpenses and liquidity issues on
monies invested in the fund. The Company faces the risk of under-pricing particutarly due to the fact that these contracts are long term, Additionally, the risk of
PoOr prsistency may result in the Company being unable 1o recover expenses Incurmed at palicy acquisition.

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting, reinsurance, claims handling policy and other related controls, The Company has a well defined
medical under-writing policy and avoids selling policies to high risk individuals. This puts a check on anti-selection. The need for profit testing is reviewed on
an annual bass o ensure veasonablencss of premiums charged. Reinsurance contracts have been purchased by the Company to limit the maximum exposure on
any ane policyholder. The Company has a good spread of business throughout the country thereby ensuring diversification of geographical risks. To avoid poor
persistency the Company applies quality controls on the standard of scrvice provided to policybholders and hay placed checks to curb mis-selling and
improvement in standard of service provided to the policyholders. For thiz, a regular branch wise moniloring of lapsation rates is conducted. On the claims
handling side, the Company has procedures in place to ensure that payment of any fraudelent claims is avoided, For this, Claims Committes with variable
materiality limits review all claims for verification and specific and detailed investigation of all apparently doubtful claims (particelarly o high emounts) is
conducted. The Company maintains adequate liquidity in cach unit fund 1o cater for potentiatly sudden and high cash requirement. The Company reserves the
right to review the charges deductible under the contracts, thus limiting the risk of under pricing.

Frequency snd severity of clalms

The C
aims to

pany cong ion of risk by geographical arca, Concentration of risk is not currently a facior of concem as the business is developing and
higve a spread of risks ious paris of the country.

However, undue concentration by amounts could have an impact on the severity of benefit payments on & portiolio basis.
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The Company charges for monalily risk on a monthly basis for all insurance contracts. It has the right 1o alter these charges based on its monality experience
and hence minimises its exposure to mortality risk. Delays in implementing increascs in charges and market or regulatory restraints over the extent of the
in¢reases may hinder its mitigating effecL The Company manages these risks through its underwriting sirategy and reinsurance amangements.

The table below presents the, concentration of insured benefits across five bands of insured benefits per individual life assured, The benefis insured figures are

shown gross and net of the reinsurance contracts described sbove. A1 year-end, none of these insurance contracts had triggered a recavery under the
reinsurance held by the Company,

The amounts presented are showing total exposure of the Company including exposure in respect of riders aitached 10 the main palicies.

Benefits assured per lile Sum assured at the end of 2015
Total beneflts assured

Rupees Before reinsurance Alter reiosurance

{Rupces) Percentage {Rupees) Percentage
0-200,000 1,623,231,821 134% 486,969,546 1.96%
200,000 - 400,000 6,691,175,122 9.64% . 2,007,352,537 12,21%
400,001 - 800,000 16,402 875,605 23.63% 4,924,852 681 19.94%
800,001 - 1,000,000 17,596,544 649 1535% 5,178.963.305 A%
Muore than 1,000,000 27,091,052,882 39.03% 3, 743,100,000 11.71%
Totat —69,404,880,078 16,437,243.159
Benefits assured per life Suny assused at the end of 2014

Total benefits d

Rupces ‘ Before rei e Afer reinsurance

{Rupees) : Percentage {Rupees) Percentage
0-200,000 412,558,991 0.93% 123,767.697 1.13%
200,000 - 400,000 1,586,155,522 358% 475,846,657 4.36%
400,001 - 300,000 6,221,040,841 14.03% 1,866,312,252 17.08%
800,001 - 1,000,000 4,512,853,87% i0.18% 1,353,856,161 12.39%
More than 1,000,000 31,594,170.651 T1.28% 7,104 918,516 65.09%
Total 44226Iﬂ9i8?6 M

a) Sources of uncertsinty In the estimation of future benefit payments and premium recelipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium reccipts for long-term unit linked insurance contracis arises from the unpredicuability
of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and variability in policyholder's behaviour.

b) Factors Impacting future benelit payments and premium receipts sre a3 follows:

Moxzlity; The expected mortality is assumed to vary between 30% and 120% of SLIC (2001-05) since the current expericnee for this line of business is not
credible.

Persistency: The business is developing and eventually the Company intends to conduct periodic analyses on its historic book of business, using statistical
methads to dztermine its persistency experience. Persistency rates are expected to vary by product and more impartantly the sales distribution channel.
Allowanee will then be made for any trend in the data 1o amrive at best estimates of future persistency rates for each sates distribution chennel

¢} Process used to decide on nssumpitiony

For fong-term unit linked insurance contracts, assumptions Are made in Iwo stages. At inception of the contract, the Company determines mpﬁm on
future mortality, persistency, sdministrative expenses and investment returna. At regular intervals, profit testing is conducted on main policies. Assumptions
used for profit testing of the main policics arc as follows:

Monality: The Company assumcs the expected mortality to vary between B0% and 120% of SLIC (2001-05) since the current cxperience for this line of
business is not credible.

Persistency: Since the Company has recenily started business, il has ne own experience 1o which it can refet, Induswry standards for anticipated persisiency
rates have been used initially. Eventually, & periodic analysis of the Company’s recent and historic expetience will bie performed and persistency will be
calcufated by applying statistical methods. Persistency rates vary by products and more importantly the sales distribution channel. An allowance will then be
made for any trend in the date 1o arrive at best esti of future persi y rates for sach sales distribution channel.

Expense levels and inflation: As the business is ncw, estimates from business projections have been used. Once established, a periodic study will be )
conducted on the Company’s current business expenses and future projections to calculate per policy expenses. Expense inflation is assumed in line with
assumed investment return.
Investment retumns: The investment returns are based an the historic performence of the assets and asset types underlying the fund.

d) Changes In assumpticas
There have been no changes in assumptions since the lasy valuation carried out a year ago.

€) Sensitivity analysis

Periodic senshtivity anatyses of the Company's in-force business determine whether any reserve needs to be created or product prices for new business need
10 be revised in light of changing or anticipated changes in experience from that expected when pricing the existing book of business. The current nature,
volume and sge of in-force business does not reguire a detailed sensitivity analysis at this stage.
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REINSURANCE RISK

It order to minimise the financial cxposure arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of busincss, enters into agrecment with other
TEINSUCETs.

Reinsurance ceded does not relicve the Company from its obligation to policyholders and as a result the Company remaing liable for the portion of cutsianding
claiins reinsured 10 the extent that reinsurer fafls 1o mest the cbligation under the reinsurance agreements,

In order to manage this risk, the Company obiains reinsurance cover only from companies with sound financial health.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENT

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of nssets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimalcs and
judgments are continually cvainated and arc based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events thal are belicved 10 be

reascnable under 1he circumstances. Estimates relating to i 13 are based on the advice of the appoinied actuary. Some of the critical accounting
estimales and judgments are as follaws:

Policyholders' liabitities
Valuation discount raie

The valuation of policyholders’ liabilities has been based on & discount rate of 3.75% per annum, which is in linc with the requiremenis under the stitwtory
minimum valuation basis and is considerably lower than the actual investment retum the Company is managing on its conventional portolio. The difference
each year between the above and the aciual investment retum is intended 1o be available 1o the Company for mecting sdministrative expenses and to provide
margins for adverse deviation.

Morisilty assumption

As per Circular No: 17 of 2013 issucd by the SECP lnsurance Division on 13th Seplember 2013, the SLIC {2001-05) Individua Life Ultimate Morialily Tablo
it to be used in Minimum Valuation Basis for the determination of minimum actuarial reserves for Policyholdez Liabilities. In the opinion of the appainted
actuary the 1sblc matches the recent mortality of the covered population.

Clalms provislon

The provision for ‘Incurred But Not Reported’ (IBNR) claims as included in policyholders' liabllity is estimated 8s 10% of the uncarned premium for the year,
This spproach is being used as the Company has Iy 1 busi Once sulficient experience of claim reparting paticms have buill up in the
Company's books, the appainted actuary of the Company will determine IBNR in accotdance with these claim log patiemns for each line of business separatcly.
Apptopriate margins will be added to cnsure that the rescrve set aside are resilient to changes in the experience.

Surrenders

]

For the purpose af valuation of conventional business, no provision has been made for lapses and surrenders. This gives prudence 1o the value placed on the
liability by not teking any credits for the profits made on surrenders.
Other assets

Judgment is also involved in assessing the realisability of the assct balances.

Income Taxet

In meking the estimates for i taxes curvently payable by the Company, the management Yooks at the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate
authorities on disputed issues in the past. However, the Company has made adeguate provision in this respect.

Impsirment In respect of isted securities

The Company determines that listed available for sale securities are impaired when there has been a significant e prolonged decline in fair valuc below its

cosl. In making this judgement. the Company evaluates, among other factors, volatility in the share prices in novmat course. [n addition, impainment may be
sppropriate when there is evidence of deteriozation in financial health of the investee, industry or secior performance,

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Cotnpany's objectives when managing capitsl are:

- to comply with the minimum capital requiremenis as set by Lhe Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through Circuler 3 af 2007 dated 10 April
2007 and S.R.O. 828(1¥2015 dated 18 August 2015 which cumenily amounts to Rs 500 million. Above circular also requires that by 30 June 2016, the life
insurance companies needs to have a minimum paid capital of Rs. 550 million, by 31 Decembet 2016 Rs. 600 million, by 30 June 2017 Rs. 650 million and
by 31 December 2017 Rs. 700 million. The Company meets the minimum capital requirements.

- o safeguard the Company’s abilily to continue as 2 poing concerm so that it can continue 1o provide retums for shareholders and benefius for other
stakeholders;

- 1o provide an ndequate relum to sharcholders by p icing i e commensurately with the level of risk; and

- o maintain a stcong capital base 1o support the sustained development of its business.

ired 1o mainizin minimuowm solvency in accardance with the rules and regulations set by the SECP, which are fully met by

In addition, the Company is also
the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The rel Pﬂnlm P ise of the p

pany, d

Related party transactions and balances, other than these disclosed clscwhere in lhcsc financial statcments are given below:

Transactions duting the year

Farent company

Premium written

Insurance expense

Claims expense

Shared service cost

AICL Premiscs rentals expense

Associated undertakings
Prermium writicn
Claims expense

Commission and other incentives in respect of Bancassurance

Profit on bank deposits
Investment advisor fee
Trustee fee

Technical support fee
Bank charges
Investments purchased
Investments sold
Dividend income

Other related parties:

S1ail Retirement Benct Plan (Gratulty Fund)

Charge for the year

Contributions made to the Gratuity fund

Transactions with key management personnel

Sale Procecds from sale of fixed assets

Gain on sale of fixed assets

Balances oulstanding a3 st the end of the year

Parent company

Premium due but unpaid
Sharcd Services Cost Payable
Claims payable

Onher payables to AICL
Insurance claima receivable

Associated undertakings
Premium duc but unpaid
Premium received in advance
Bank deposits

Investments held

Dividend receivable
Technical suppert feo paysble
Commission payable

Claims payable

Remuneration payable for management of
discretionary investment portofolio
Remuneration payable to Trustee

Coniributions! charge 10 the staff retirement benefit plan are as per the actuarial advice.

Note

824
9.2.3

1

1, associated undertakings, and catitics with common dircctors.

2015 2014
{Rupces)

3,824,677 3.322.536
5,299,458 4,314,453
2,500,000 5,500,000
- 300,000
3,571,085 3,083,744
90,271,132 86,722,276
56,162,547 57,882,132
1,006,563,528 861,870,474
26,101,117 30,407,715
21,134,893 14,515,144
6,620,059 4,553,251
- 4,284,000
531,142 186,182
2,475,626,445 1.311,979.026
1,901,503,616 791,751,412
27,896,567 162,750
15,875,538 13,871,547
12,844,940 23,247,629
1,577,568 2249140
185,728 1,860,501
- 103,334
- 1,155,000
3,500,000 3,500,000
2,764,153 2,754,342
13,921 110,914
6,451,655 10,483,162
52,369 813,723
830,266,963 501,316,593
1,754,706,001 1,119,609,436

159,500 -
14,933,015 15,519,907
180,916,138 221,358,751
3,820,442 7,289,912
5,090,766 1,762,590
683,184 446,941

Remuneration given fo key management personnel  as disclosed in note 24) arc as per the terms of their employment. Other transactions arc at agreed

falcs.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial staternents were authorised for issue by the Board of Directoes of the Company in their meeting held on

e

Fonm
/e,

Chalrman

Dlrectur

Director

15 FEB 2016




